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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
small and mid-sized companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential
risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision

to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and
mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM
may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities
traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance
is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded
on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange
take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from

or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Mindtell
Technology Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the
Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made
all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge
and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and
complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive,
and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any

statement herein or this report misleading.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETEHRES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of Mindtell Technology
Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present to you the annual
report of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
for the year ended 30 November 2022.

REVIEW

The Group’s operation is mainly located in Malaysia. The Group has
provided system integration and computer related services since 2006
and continuously diversified our business to general trading services
in relation to IT services and provision of management advice and
consultancy services regarding computer softwares and information
technology. The Group provided IT services to both private and public
sectors and our customers include banks and financial institutions,
government and statutory bodies, education institutions, IT services

firms, software principals and other small and medium enterprises.

The COVID-19 pandemic which began in early 2020 continued to
have an impact during the financial year ended 30 November 2022.
The COVID-19 pandemic affected the negotiation of new projects and
delayed the progress of existing projects of the Group. Nevertheless,
the Group continued to use its best endeavour to secure the existing
projects and services rendered, to maintain stable operation and to
mitigate the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. At the same time,
the Group has actively negotiated and secured new projects and
tenders to enhance its business performance and continued to develop
advanced version of our existing IT products in order to further increase
the competitive edge of our technical competence. The Group is also
looking for appropriate investment opportunities to strengthen the core
business of the Group. Furthermore, the Group will focus on executing

its business strategies and utilize its competitive strengths.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETEHRES

OUTLOOK

The Asian region is going through some interesting yet potentially
turbulent times. Barely out of the pandemic crisis, the Group is now
monitoring the possible global recession with headline news on rising
interest rates, the war in Ukraine and supply chain disruptions affecting
business operations. The business environment will continue to remain

challenging for the Group.

Taking into consideration the challenges faced by the Group, the Group
has actively negotiated and secured new projects and tenders to
enhance its business performance and continued to develop advanced
version of our existing IT products in order to further increase the
competitive edge of our technical competence. The Group had taken
steps to explore emerging markets such as Vietham and Cambodia
and to identify new business opportunities and appropriate investment
opportunities to strengthen the core business of the Group. Our priority

has always been the strategies below:

a. Focusing on enterprise banking and government agencies that
their demand for system, application and data management
services are consistent and their operations rely heavily on

information communication technology.

b. Providing pay-per-use or leasing commercial model to ease

customer’s financial burden and to secure long term contracts.

©. Establishing a unique and competitive information communication

technology solution.

We believe that these actions will enable us to contribute positively
to our Group’s future earnings and consequentially improve the
financial position of our Group. Post pandemic, the Group’s customers
appear more confident to spend and invest in IT-driven business
transformation. Over the year, the Group was well-positioned, from
the focus and developed an advanced version of our IT products, to
help the customer drive their transformation upgrades and promote

digital adoption by providing them the right solutions.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETEHRES

The Group will continue to actively pursue the following business
strategies: (i) to be a major IT solution provider to the development of
digital banking and digital public financial services; (ii) to capture new
growth opportunities on solution related to digitalisation of customer
fronting needs; and (iii) to leverage on the business networks of the
Pre-IPO Investors to introduce IT products in the PRC into Malaysia;

and diversifying our service offerings to our customers.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express our sincere gratitude
to our shareholders, bankers, customers and business partners
for their support and trust placed on us. | would also like to thank
our management and employees for their tremendous effort and
contribution which enabled us to overcome the challenges encountered
during the previous year. With our competent management and
professional teams, | believe the Group will succeed in achieving

our business goals.

Yours sincerely,

Chong Yee Ping
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 28 February 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEENWE DN

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The Group is an IT service provider based in Malaysia and principally
engaged in the design, procurement, installation and maintenance of
customised systems application for corporate customers. Our services

mainly include:

(i) System integration and development — development and
customisation of corporate IT system applications on project
basis, either in the capacity as a main contractor or as a

subcontractor;

(i) IT outsourcing — performance of specific tasks for development
and customisation of corporate IT system applications which
are within our expertise under the supervision of customers;

and

(iii) Maintenance and consultancy — maintenance and support of

the developed IT system applications.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group’s revenue was derived from three principal businesses,
namely, system integration and development services, IT outsourcing
services and maintenance and consultancy services which are

analysed in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

For the year ended 30 November 2022, the Group recorded a decrease
in total revenue by approximately 27.4% to approximately RM12.5
million (2021: approximately RM17.2 million). The decrease in revenue
was mainly due to decrease in revenue generated from the system

integration and development services and IT outsourcing services.

Details of changes in the revenue derived from system integration and
development services, IT outsourcing services, and maintenances and

consultancy services are analysed below.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEENWE DN

System integration and development services

For system integration and development services, the revenue
decreased by approximately 24.8% to approximately RM10.2 million
for the year ended 30 November 2022 (2021: approximately RM13.5
million). The decrease in revenue was mainly due to the combination of
economic slowdown and a slowdown in securing new projects, along
with the completion of large projects, all of which are contributing
factors to the decline in revenue for the system integration and
development services business.

IT outsourcing services

For IT outsourcing services, the revenue decreased by approximately
56.4% to approximately RM1.2 million for the year ended 30 November
2022 (2021: approximately RM2.9 million). The primary reason for the
decline was a reduction in the amount of time devoted to outsourcing
services, which was due to the allocation of the Company’s staff to
internal projects instead of provision of IT outsourcing services to
external customers.

Maintenance and consultancy services

For maintenance and consultancy services, the revenue increased by
approximately 32.0% to approximately RM1,047,000 for the year ended
30 November 2022 (2021: approximately RM793,000). The increase in
revenue was mainly due to the addition of a new significant project that
generated revenue of approximately RM0.45 million during the year.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The following table sets forth a breakdown of gross profit and gross
profit margin for the years indicated:
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEENWE DN

The gross profit increased from approximately RM2.7 million for the
year ended 30 November 2021 to approximately RM3.4 million for the
year ended 30 November 2022.

The gross profit margin increased from approximately 15.7% for
the year ended 30 November 2021 to approximately 27.1% for the
year ended 30 November 2022. The increase in gross profit margin
was mainly due to the increase in gross profit margin from system

integration and development services and maintenance services.
Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses increased by approximately 19.7% to
approximately RM10.9 million for the year ended 30 November 2022
(2021: approximately RM9.1 million). The increase was mainly due to
increase in amortisation of intangible assets of approximately RM1.5

million.

Finance costs

The finance costs increased by approximately 36.1% to approximately
RM98,000 for the year ended 30 November 2022 (2021: approximately
RM72,000). The increase in finance costs was mainly because the
Malaysia banks granted interest-free deferral of repayment for interest-
bearing borrowings in 2021, while no such deferral was granted in
2022.

Income tax expenses

Income tax expenses were approximately RM144,000 for the year
ended 30 November 2022 (2021: approximately RM48,000). The
income tax expenses mainly arose from profits generated by two

Malaysia subsidiaries for the financial year.
Loss for the year

The Group recorded a loss of approximately RM6.7 million for the
year ended 30 November 2022 (2021: approximately RM6.3 million).
Although the gross profit increased and there was a reversal of
impairment loss on trade receivables of approximately RM0.9 million,
the increase in loss was mainly due to the increase in administrative

expenses as analysed above.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEENWE DN

RESPONSE TO OUTBREAK OF COVID-19
PANDEMIC

Since early 2020, the COVID-19 pandemic spread worldwide and
posed significant threats to the global human health and economy.
The COVID-19 pandemic has resulted in, among other things, ongoing
travel restrictions, prolonged closures of workplaces, lockdowns in
various countries and increased volatility in international capital market.
To control the spread of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Malaysian
Government implemented a series of precautionary measures such
as lockdowns, quarantines, travel restrictions, business shutdowns
and vaccination. The COVID-19 pandemic has lasted longer than we
anticipated, with longer lockdown periods in those major countries
where we operate in as compared to the previous year, and customers
are mostly staying on the sidelines and delaying their key information

technology purchasing decisions.

The year of 2022 was a still challenging year for the Group. The
COVID-19 pandemic and the emergence of new variants thereof has
continued to pose significant challenges on global economic activities
and financial markets. The on-going armed conflict in Ukraine has
triggered a global commodities price fluctuation. Together with the
on-going COVID-19 pandemic, US-China-Taiwan tensions, extreme
global climate change, rising interest rates and volatility of currency
exchanges, are likely to create further global security and economic
uncertainties which affected the financial performance of the Group in
2022. The Group’s financial performance of 2022 has not been evaded
from the above negative impacts and concerns. The Group saw
some revival of business activities during the period of the Recovery
Movement Control Order. However, the market was dampened again
by the third wave of the COVID-19 pandemic in Malaysia which directly
impacted our Group’s business activities as a result of the cautious
slow resumption of the industry. As a result, these adversely affected

our financial results.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEENWE DN

The Malaysian economy has recovered strongly from the the disruptions
of the COVID-19 pandemic in the second half of 2022 due to high
vaccination rate, continuing nationwide inoculation programme, and
adequate healthcare capacity. Malaysia has progressively reopened
its economy despite the resurgence of infections by the Omicron
variant in 2022. Nevertheless, the full withdrawal of movement
restrictions, the re-opened national borders for travellers and the
reopening of the economy are expected to reposition Malaysia on a
quicker recovery path. The Group can travel to more destinations with
ease for business activities and continue to work on opportunities and

explore the markets with the current and new technological offerings.

Despite the emergence of new variants of COVID-19 pandemic which
continued to pose significant challenges to many countries, the Group
believes that the global economy is recovering gradually as more and
more countries gradually adopt to live with the COVID-19 pandemic
and as a result of high vaccination rate lessening the severity of
illness and outbreaks. The Group will continue to focus on ensuring
that all ongoing projects and services be secured and keeping close
contact with our customers and business partners through online

communication.

We will continue to work in partnership with our customers to provide
them the recommendation to modernise their solutions they need to
advance into the digital age. We foresee the industry has started
to formulate budget and plan for an expansionary future, in a new
norm with the COVID-19 virus being a part of the landscape in the
foreseeable future. We observe that significant deals that were
deferred in the past are now being brought to table for discussion
and negotiation. We continue to focus on our customers’requirements,
providing them the right solutions and continuing to promote digital

adoption and transformation.

At the same time, the Group will monitor the development of the
COVID-19 pandemic to ensure the safety of employees and stable
operations and to mitigate the adverse impact of the COVID-19
pandemic. As and when appropriate, the Group will adjust its
measures and plans for pandemic prevention, operations and business

sustainability and development accordingly.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

At 30 November 2022, the total borrowings of the Group amounted
to approximately RM1.8 million (2021: approximately RM2.1 million)
which comprised interest-bearing borrowings and lease liabilities.
Details on the effective interest rate and maturity profile of the Group’s
total borrowings are set out in Notes 13 and 21 to the consolidated

financial statements.

At 30 November 2022, the gearing ratio of the Group was 19.4%
(2021: 13.1%). Gearing ratio is calculated based on total borrowings

divided by total equity at the end of the financial year.

At 30 November 2022, the Group’s net current assets amounted to
approximately RM5.9 million (2021: approximately RM10.9 million).
The current ratio of the Group was approximately 2.1 times (2021:
approximately 1.8 times). Current ratio is calculated based on total
current assets divided by total current liabilities at the end of the

financial year.

The Group’s operations are financed principally by revenue generated
from its business operation, available bank balances and cash as well
as interest-bearing borrowings. The Board will continue to follow a
prudent treasury policy in managing its bank balances and cash and
maintain a strong and healthy liquidity position to ensure that the Group

is well positioned to achieve its business objectives and strategies.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 30 November 2022, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities (2021: nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At 30 November 2022, the Group did not have significant capital

commitments contracted but not provided for (2021: nil).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

At 30 November 2022, the Group did not have any significant

investments (2021: nil).

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 30 November 2022, the Group had obtained banking facilities
on issuance of bank guarantees granted by certain creditworthy
banks, which were guaranteed by the restricted bank balances of
approximately RM649,000 (2021: approximately RM466,000) as set

out in Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

At 30 November 2022, the interest-bearing borrowings were secured
by properties owned by the Group with aggregate net carrying amount
of approximately RM1.2 million (2021: approximately RM1.2 million) as

set out in Note 21(i) to the consolidated financial statements.

FUTURE BUSINESS AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN
The Group actively pursues the following business strategies:

(i) to be a major IT solution provider to the development of digital

banking and digital public financial services;

(i) to capture new growth opportunities on solution related to

digitalisation of customer fronting needs; and

(iii)  to leverage on the business networks of the pre-IPO investors of
the Company to introduce IT products in the PRC into Malaysia,

and diversify our service offerings to our customers.

BEEEHA

R-TBE-_—F+—A=+H  AEBEMHT
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Details of the Group’s future business and development plans are

set out below:

(i) To be a major IT solution provider to the development of

digital banking and digital public financial services

As the country just embark into the route of stabilising the
economy and political conditions, Malaysia is setting foot to
release two rounds of national budget. The first one was released
on 24 February 2023. It is still unclear how the second budget
will change the market outlook and it is challenging to anticipate

which sector will benefit from technology investment.

Hence, more focus is diverted to the promising financial services
industry as well as public financial services, such as social
security, central banks, stock exchange, as well as pension
fund organisation. These industries had steadily invested
into fundamental demand especially in the compliance area.
They have grown steadily amidst the pandemic and during
economy downturn. We have been serving the market in both
data engineering services, compliance, as well as digitalisation

development.

We have also established ourselves in a prominent position
of offering anti-money laundering solution since last year. It
will be a highly demanded solution. We believe that we will be
able to anchor the market with more adoption of our anti-money

laundering solution.

Riding on our track record of active digitalisation in social
security, stock exchange, as well as central bank, we will
continue to focus on selling and marketing activities in this
segment. This is also supported by our known reputation in

the same area.
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(i)

To capture new growth opportunities on solution related to

digitalisation of customer fronting services

The Group has developed the advanced version of our mobile
payment and customer onboarding application — Blackbutton, in
order to localise the mobile payment product into Malaysia and
integrating the payment operator with the banking infrastructure.
Blackbutton Version 2.0 has been completed and is ready for
offering to market.

As the digital financial services ramped up in the market, new
demand focusing on three areas of digital process seems

increasing:

a. Digital customer onboarding

b. Digital Electronic Know Your Customer (eKYC)
©. Digital credit origination

The Group will enhance Blackbutton to expand its feature to
fully support the three features above. The Group may also
explore potential acquisition to accelerate the strengthening
of products and features to meet the potential market demand
in its NS3 and CUSTPRO products. The functions that include
mobile technology and statistical modelling are still sought after
in the intellectual property acquisition.

However, as the market is still in the transition to the actual post-
pandemic status, acquisition of new intellectual property will be
conducted cautiously and considered meticulously.

The digital banking solution is ready for offering to market. We will
be conducting active marketing activities such as participation
of regional banking technology events, close group forums with
local bankers, etc.

The current market, after the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic
and its economic impact on the global market, are also suffering
from global economy slowdown due to the interest rate hikes. Itis
expected that it will persist to give rise to an uncertain economic
environment to the Malaysian market. In the coming years,
the information technology industry in Malaysia is expected to
remain challenging and competitive.

Looking forward, the Group will remain cautious and continue
to pay close attention and focus on providing IT solutions by
integrating the existing resources and optimising the business
performance.

(i)
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(iii) To leverage on the business networks of the Pre-IPO
Investors of the Company to introduce IT products in the
PRC into Malaysia; and diversity our service offerings to
our customers

The Group has been discussing with various potential technology
partners in the PRC regarding the launch of their services/
products in Malaysia. Site visits were conducted to further
discuss business collaboration for Malaysian market before the
outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic. However, these activities
were put on hold or delayed due to the COVID-19 pandemic
and restrictions on international travel.

As the international travel is substantially resumed, the Group will
continue to discuss with potential business partners, and actively
explore valuable IT products for the purpose of diversifying our
products and services offering to our customers.

Barely out of the pandemic crisis, the Group is now monitoring the
possible global recession with headline news on rising interest rates,
the war in Ukraine and supply chain disruptions affecting business
operations. The business environment will continue to remain
challenging for the Group. Taking into consideration the challenges
faced by the Group, the Group has actively negotiated and secured
new projects and tenders to enhance its business performance and
continued to develop advanced version of our existing IT products
in order to further increase the competitive edge of our technical
competence. The Group had taken steps to explore emerging
markets such as Vietnam and Cambodia and to identify new business
opportunities and appropriate investment opportunities to strengthen
the core business of the Group. Nevertheless, the Group remains
mindful and watchful of the global developments and is cautious on
how they will impact our region. The Group will adjust and transform
itself as the economic landscape evolves. Furthermore, the Group
will focus on implementing its business strategies and utilize its
competitive strengths. The Board will closely monitor the impact of
the government policies of Malaysia on the Group’s future business
and development plans and make further adjustments to the plans
if necessary.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

During the year ended 30 November 2022, the Group did not have
any material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group identified various principal risk factors and uncertainties

that may affect our operating results and business prospects, including

but not limited to the following:

Risk factors and uncertainties
EAREERFEERE

Most of the contracts are project-based which create

uncertainty in sustainability of our future revenue streams

RERD & HIATE B BERE - W2 AR IR N AT 45 A MR
TEAEAE =

Rely on major customers for a significant portion of our
business and any decrease in revenue generated from
major customers could materially and adversely affect our

business, results of operations and financial condition

AREETFPAESERDONER  REBEFEEZKHE
ORI E B P2 5755 - RERERIBIRRERBRTHF
s

Cost overruns or delays in our system integration and
development projects may materially and adversely affect

our business, financial position and results of operation

Bz ZRBERABRER BRKABIRIER - TR M2
X715 MBAR KR EEEENERNTFZE

TERBRAEERE

AEBEBR AT ERLEXEREBAIRA
EEIERBEAREIEERNE  B8RETR
RUATNEIA

Risk Response
[ B 1 FE

To secure new contracts, the Group continuously enhances
our future products and services offerings, introduces
various marketing and promotional activities, and provides
customised solutions to the customers.

REBHEH  REBTENBREMARNERTRBES -
HHSELHNERLS - UREPRHTESMCBATER -

The Group maintains good and long-term relationships with the
existing customers. At the same time, the Group introduces
various marketing and promotional activities to attract
potential customers and to increase market awareness. The
Group will continue to identify opportunities and explore
the market with the current and new technological offerings
acquired through partnerships.

REBERAEFPRFRFLEHNSIERE - AR - REEE
HERBEHREREE - REVBEEEP REmHHEE « K
SEBEENBBRSERHBRESHERE KARNERS
B EWRETIS -

The COVID-19 pandemic has resulted in cost overruns and
delays in projects. Nevertheless, the Group continues to
manage the costs carefully, rationalize cost structure and
optimise the resources utilisation and efficiencies.

COVID-19& B3| BUR A X F1H B R AT HIRIER - A - &
SESREFETERAE  AELEERAEERELERFA
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Risk factors and uncertainties

BEBREER FREREE

Failure to anticipate and keep pace with the development of

our customer’s business and industry

BEERRE LRPEBRITEZER

Significant delays in the settlement of trade receivables from

our customers

BEP#EE SRR HEERIER

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

Risk Response

[ B 21 P

The Group closely monitors the changes in technologies and
reviews the customers’ needs to mitigate the risks. The
Group also develops advanced versions of its existing
products and evaluates the potential acquisitions of IT
business from time to time to meet the customers’ demands.

AEETYDIBRIRNE L REREFPOFR - ARERR - &
SE NG A E @ EER R R A BN B R
BUEE - AmR BT EER o

The Group conducts businesses with recognised and
creditworthy customers and generally does not provide
a long credit period to new customers unless they are
sizable enterprises with good reputation. The trade
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis
by the management. To collect overdue trade receivables,
the Group closely monitors overdue payments and
performs credit search on our customers to ensure their

recoverability.

Although the pandemic has affected prompt and timely
payment of many customers, credit and payment terms
have been restructured to ensure these customers continue
to settle their outstanding fees when due. The collection

progress has been achieved constantly.
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The financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group

are set out in Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk as most
of the business transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in Malaysian Ringgit and Hong Kong dollars. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy
in respect of its foreign currency transactions, assets and liabilities.
The management monitors our foreign currency exposure closely and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should

the need arise.

CHANGE IN USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds raised by the Company from the share offer of
the Company were approximately RM30.5 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$58.6 million) (based on the final Offer Price (as
defined in the Prospectus) of HK$0.62 per offer share adjusted by
the Downward Offer Price Adjustment (as defined in the Prospectus)).
The Company adjusted the use of net proceeds on a pro rata basis
for the purposes as disclosed in the section headed “Future Plans
and Use of Proceeds — Use of Proceeds” of the Prospectus and the
price reduction announcement dated 16 October 2018, which were

as follows:

= approximately RM3.05 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$5.86 million), representing approximately 10% of the net
proceeds, for strengthening our technical team by recruiting

more IT specialists

- approximately RM18.3 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$35.2 million), representing approximately 60% of the
net proceeds, for purchase of hardware and equipment for
establishment of IT infrastructure for the provision of cloud

storage and cloud computing services
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- approximately RM6.1 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$11.7 million), representing approximately 20% of the net
proceeds, for research and development of advanced and

adapted versions of our Group’s existing IT products

- approximately RM3.05 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$5.86 million), representing approximately 10% of the net
proceeds, as general working capital

On 19 March 2021, the Board resolved to change the use of the
remaining balance of the unutilised net proceeds of approximately
RM17.28 million to research and development of advanced and
adapted versions of our Group’s existing IT products (RM3.28 million),
the acquisition of IT business (RM3.00 million) and for the Group’s
general working capital (RM11.00 million) (the “First Change in UOP”).
Details of the First Change in UOP were set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 23 March 2021.

On 28 February 2022, the Board resolved to re-allocate the unutilised
net proceeds of approximately RM3.00 million for acquisition of IT
business to research and development of advanced and adapted
versions of our Group’s existing IT products (the “Second Change
in UOP”). Details of the Second Change in UOP were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 28 February 2022.
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The table below sets out the utilisation of the net proceeds up to 30 TREVMERBFEHEE T -_—_F+—A
November 2022: =t+HZERBERAREZRERMEHRIERS !
Amount of Amount of
utilised unutilised
Original Adjusted Adjusted net proceeds net proceeds
intended use of net proceeds net proceeds up to up to
net proceeds after the First after the Second 30 November 30 November
Use of proceeds from the Listing Change in UOP Change in UOP 2022 2022
gz BE
£-NEY FREH ZRIZE ZRIZE
RIL® FERERR4 2 feERR’ t-A=1H t-f=t1A
FRMERE AREBHE FEL S NEBRAE WABRKE
fEERE RERE REFE REFER NEFE EFE
AM million RM million RM million RM million RM million
5EEET FEEET FEEET FHEET SHEET
Strengthening our technical team by recruiting more IT specialists 3.05 3.0 3.0 (3.09) -

RERSEANBET M NERTER

Purchase of hardware and equipment for establishment of IT 18.30 1.02 1.02 (1.02) -
infrastructure for the provision of cloud storage and cloud
computing services

BEENRRENEUEARRERSRE - AR
EREFREREERE
Research and development of advanced and adapted versions of our 6.10 9.38 12.38 (12.38) -
Group's existing IT products (Note 1)
REAEEREEAN HER ERRRE
ER(1)
Acquisition of IT business (Note 2) - 3.00 - - -
WEEAREER (L)

General working capital (Note 3) 3.05 14.06 14.05 (14.05) -
-REEEE(Hi9)

Total 30.50 30.50 30.50 (30.50) =

it
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Notes:

1. The existing IT products of our Group include Square Intelligence,
CUSTPRO and Blackbutton.

2. The acquisition target(s) include companies which possess the Taraf
Bumiputera MOF. During the year, the management had endeavoured
to negotiate for a potential acquisition of a company that possesses the
licence of Taraf Bumiputra MOF, but the potential acquisition did not

proceed due to unsatisfactory due diligence results.

3. At the date of the First Change in UOP, the unutilised net proceeds of
approximately RM11 million were reallocated to general working capital
comprising staff costs of approximately RM7.6 million, professional fees
of approximately RM1.5 million, finance costs of approximately RMO.1
million and others of approximately RM1.8 million. At the date of the
Second Change of UOP, there was no change in the use of the remaining
unutilised amount of approximately RM2.84 million for general working
capital. The expected timeline for utilisation was slightly extended from
31 March 2022 to 31 May 2022 based on the best estimation of the

present and future business market conditions made by the Board.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 30 November 2022, the Group had a total of 70 employees (2021:
60) in Hong Kong and Malaysia. For the year ended 30 November
2022, total staff costs and related expenses of the Group (including
the Directors’ remuneration) were approximately RM9.1 million (2021:
approximately RM7.7 million).

Employees’ remuneration is determined with reference to market terms
and the performance, qualifications and experience of employees.
Apart from the statutory retirement benefits and medical benefits,
the Group also provides trainings to employees to enhance their

knowledge and maintain the quality of our services.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEENWE DN

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group joins a mandatory provident fund (“MPF”) scheme in
accordance with the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. Under the MPF
Scheme, the Group is required to make contributions to the scheme
at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the scheme vest
immediately. The assets of the scheme are held separately from those

of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees.

The subsidiaries of the Group in Malaysia also operate Employees
Provident Fund (the “EPF”) for their employees in accordance with the
statutory requirements prescribed by the relevant Malaysian laws and
regulations. The Group is required to contribute certain percentage
(6%-13%) of their payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to

the retirement benefit scheme is to make the specified contributions.

For the years ended 30 November 2022 and 2021, there were no
forfeited contributions which were available to reduce the Group’s

existing level of contributions to the MPF Scheme and the EPF.

For the year ended 30 November 2022, the total amount contributed
by the Group to the schemes was approximately RM703,000 (2021:
approximately RM629,000).
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESERGREEE[N

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chong Yee Ping (“Mr. Chong”), aged 43, the founder of the
Group, was appointed as the chairman of the Board, chief executive
officer and executive Director of the Company on 27 February 2018.
Mr. Chong is also a director of the subsidiaries of the Company,
namely Excel Elite Global Limited, Tandem Advisory Sdn. Bhd. and
Mixsol Sdn. Bhd. He is mainly responsible for formulating the overall
business development strategy and planning; overseeing the Group’s
performance and management; and leading and representing the

Group in negotiation with potential business partners.

Mr. Chong is experienced in the field of system integration and
development as a software engineer. From 2003 to 2007, Mr. Chong
worked in iPower Berhad, a company engaged in system integration
based in Malaysia. From March 2017 to December 2020, Mr. Chong
was a director of C.I.S Integrated Sdn. Bhd., a company engaged in
the provision of online home design solutions. In the past 11 years,
Mr. Chong has been working relentlessly to build up the Group.
In particular, he has participated in the development of NS3 and
CUSTPRO, the two self-developed IT products of the Group.

Mr. Chong obtained a Bachelor's degree of Information Technology
majoring in software engineering with honours from Multimedia
University in Malaysia in May 2003. Subsequently, he completed
three IBM professional certification programs, which are IBM Certified
Specialist DB2 and IBM Certified Database Administrator respectively
in 2004 and IBM Certified System Administrator — Websphere
Application Server Network Deployment in 2006.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESERGREEE[N

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Liu Yan Chee James (“Mr. Liu”), aged 52, was appointed as an
executive Director on 8 March 2018. Mr. Liu is also a director of a
subsidiary of the Company, namely Excel Elite Global Limited. He is
also currently the compliance officer and an authorised representative

of the Company.

Mr. Liu has over 25 years of experience in finance and accounting. He
is currently and has been an executive director and the chief executive
officer of Asia Resources Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 899) since
April 2017 and August 2018 respectively. He is also currently and has
been an executive director of Future Bright Mining Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 2212) since August 2019. He was the chief executive
officer of Future Bright Mining Holdings Limited from 26 October 2018
to 16 June 2020. He was an independent non-executive director and
the chairman of the audit committee of Luen Wong Group Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 8217) from March 2016 to December 2017.

Mr. Liu obtained a Bachelor’s degree of Commerce from Dalhousie
University in Canada in February 1994.

Mr. Liu has been criticised by the Listing Committee of the Stock
Exchange on 20 January 2020 in relation to his breach of Rule
3.08(f) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (“Listing Rules”), and his obligations under the Declaration
and Undertaking with regards to directors given by him to the Stock
Exchange set out in Appendix 5 of the Listing Rules, in discharging his
fiduciary duties as an executive director of Asia Resources Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 899) with sufficient skill, care and diligence of a
director as may reasonably be expected of a person of his knowledge
and experience and holding his office. For details, please refer to the

announcement of the Company dated 23 January 2020.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESERGREEE[N

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang (“Mr. Siah”), aged 44, was appointed as
a non-executive Director on 27 February 2018. Mr. Siah is also a
director of the subsidiaries of the Company, namely Tandem Advisory
Sdn. Bhd., Mixsol Sdn. Bhd. and Concorde Technology Sdn. Bhd..

In 2005, Mr. Siah founded CSS MSC Sdn. Bhd., which focuses on,
among others, business intelligence and data warehousing, for
enabling a business to gather and analyse its data regarding specific
function areas such as finance, supply chain, human resources, sales
and marketing and customer service to provide historical, current
and predictive views of business operations and has been the chief
operating officer and a director thereof until his resignation in February
2018. He was responsible for the operations and research and
development of CSS MSC Sdn. Bhd.. From March 2017 to December
2020, Mr. Siah was a director of C.I.S Integrated Sdn. Bhd., a company
engaged in the provision of online home design solutions. Mr. Siah
is experienced in the implementation of business intelligence, data

warehousing and banking solutions.

Currently, Mr. Siah is a director of Rivermains Technology Sdn. Bhd.,

a company engaged in the provision of online car insurance.

Mr. Siah obtained a Bachelor’s degree of Engineering (Mechanical) with
honours from University of Malaya in September 2002. Subsequently,
he received an ITIL Foundation Certificate in IT Service Management
in February 2005 and an ITIL Manager’s Certificate in IT Service
Management in September 2005.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESERGREEE[N

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Lam Pang (“Mr. Lam”), aged 53, was appointed as a non-

executive Director on 8 March 2018.

Mr. Lam has around 30 years of extensive experience in trading
between the PRC and Hong Kong, and property investment in the
PRC. He founded Stars (Holdings) Limited (now known as Stars
Pacific Limited), of which he has been the director and has been
engaged in trading business since 1992. He was the chairman of
GOME Electrical Appliances Holding Limited (now known as GOME
Retail Holdings Limited), a listed company on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 0493) from December 2000 to April
2002 and an executive director from September 2000 to May 2007.
Afterwards, Mr. Lam was an executive director of |LIBE & Z&E %
BBR/AF] (Shandong Jintai Group Co., Ltd), a listed company on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 600385) from July 2007 to
June 2013, and a director of Blossomhill Investment Limited (formerly
known as Special Fine Investment and Management Limited) from
December 2013 to October 2015. From 2015 to October 2019, Mr.
Lam was the general manager of #f & 1BERFAZEAFR AR (Hunan
Fu Heng Construction Development Co., Ltd.), which is principally

engaged in infrastructure and property development.

Mr. Lam currently serves as the consultant of JRIITEH LT E
(Shenzhen Association of Chinese Traditional Culture Studies), &
BEBEBRECERTAERETREREIEZ8E (Health Science and
Technology Work Committee of China Association for Promoting
International Economic & Technical Cooperation) and Bt &£ 2

& (China pre-Qin History Society).

Mr. Lam graduated from Pui Ying Secondary School in late 1980s.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESERGREEE[N

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan San Ping (“Mr. Chan”), aged 58, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 19 September 2018. He is the
chairman of the remuneration committee and a member of the audit

committee and nomination committee.

Mr. Chan was the partner of GrammyTech Limited from September
2003 to April 2013, and is the managing partner of EMP Partners since
May 2013. During the said periods, he has been responsible for the
management of the business for banking and finance recruitment in
Hong Kong and China. From July 1997 to September 2003, Mr. Chan
was the managing partner of Grammy Financial Institutions Group
Limited, and his main responsibility covered the management of the
senior level recruitment business for financial services industry in Hong
Kong and North Asia. These past and present positions have given
Mr. Chan around 25 years of experiences in recruitment of talents in

the finance industry.

Mr. Chan obtained a Bachelor's degree of Arts with honours, majoring

in business studies from City University of Hong Kong in 1988.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESERGREEE[N

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

(continued)

Mr. Su Chi Wen (“Mr. Su”), aged 55, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 19 September 2018. He is the chairman
of the nomination committee and a member of the remuneration

committee and audit committee.

Mr. Su has over 20 years of experience working in the IT industry. Mr.
Su has been the deputy IT director of C&C Joint Printing Co., (H.K.)
Ltd since January 2014 and was the project manager of C&C Joint
Printing Co., (H.K.) Ltd from May 2005 to December 2013. Prior to
that, Mr. Su was the executive director of High-Growth (H.K.) Limited
from July 1997 to June 2000. From July 1995 to March 1997, Mr. Su

was the system consultant of System Management Consultancy Ltd.

Mr. Su was the founder of Sys Solutions Limited and Sys Solutions
Holdings Limited (now known as Enviro Energy International Holdings
Limited), a company formerly listed on GEM (Stock Code: 8182) since
February 2003 and subsequently transferred its listing from GEM to
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1102) since
December 2010. From July 2000 to May 2004, he was the executive
director and chief executive officer of Sys Solutions Limited and Sys

Solutions Holdings Limited.

Mr. Su obtained a Bachelor’'s degree of Commerce, majoring in
marketing from Dalhousie University in Canada in 1995. He was
awarded a certificate of digital asset management by the Advanced
Printing Technology Centre (APTEC), a subsidiary of the Hong Kong
Printers Association in 2005. In 2014, Mr. Su received an executive
diploma in digital marketing from Hong Kong Management Association

and a certificate from China Business Executives Academy Dalian.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESERGREEE[N

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

(continued)

Ms. Ho Suet Man Stella (“Ms. Ho”), aged 51, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 19 September 2018. She is the
chairman of the audit committee and a member of the remuneration

committee and nomination committee.

Ms. Ho has been the chief financial officer and the company secretary
of Hong Kong Resources Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code:
2882) since May 2017 and March 2018 respectively. From September
2007 to February 2017, Ms. Ho served as the chief financial officer and
company secretary of Paradise Entertainment Limited (Stock Code:
1180). Prior to that, she was the financial controller and company
secretary of Linefan Technology Holdings Limited (now known as China
Eco-Farming Limited) (Stock Code: 8166) from May 2004 to September
2007. She was the financial manager of Recruit Holdings Limited
(now known as Kingkey Intelligence Culture Holdings Limited) (Stock
Code: 550) from November 2002 to August 2003 and the accounting
manager of Systek Information Technology Limited (now known as
Dadi International Group Limited) (Stock Code: 8130) from October
2001 to November 2002. These past and present positions have given
Ms. Ho over 20 years of financial and accounting experience and

extensive experience of working in listed companies in Hong Kong.

Ms. Ho obtained a Bachelor’'s degree in Accountancy with honours
from Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 1994. She was admitted as
a member of both The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in May
1998 and May 2000 respectively.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESERGREEE[N

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Pang Hen Yong (“Mr. Pang”), aged 43, is the chief technology
officer of the Group. He joined the Group in December 2012 and is
responsible for all aspects of strategic IT planning, implementation,
and support as an integral component of the business plan. He is also
responsible for budgeting, design and support of all technological

issues of the Group.

Mr. Pang worked as the technical consultant for DKSH Holding AG,
also known as DiethelmKellerSiberHegner, a company listed on the
SIX Swiss Exchange (Stock Code: DKSH) from March 2007 to July
2011. From July 2011 to December 2012, he worked as the technical
consultant for GlaxoSmithKline plc, a company listed on both the
London Stock Exchange (Stock Code: GSK) and the New York Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: GSK).

Mr. Pang obtained a Bachelor’s degree of Information Technology with
honours from Universiti Tenaga Nasional in August 2003. He received
an ITIL Foundation Certificate in IT Service Management in October
2012. In 2014, he completed IBM professional certification program,

namely IBM Certified System Administrator.

Mr. Wong Puh Yih (“Mr. Wong”), aged 40, is the head of research
and development department of the Group. He was appointed as a
member of the technical team of the Group in April 2014. His main
responsibilities include: (i) development and design of product from
concept to specifications and implementation and (ii) coordination
with internal or external engineering teams on the new process and

equipment design, scale-up, capability improvement and validation.

Mr. Wong obtained an Associate Degree in Information Technology
from New Era College in 2006. He is certified as a Sun Certified
Programmer for the Java Platform in 2010. In 2014, he completed
two IBM professional certification programs, namely IBM Certified

Database Administrator and IBM Certified Database Associate.

,_Jll)& EEEE

RBREE(TREAE)) 435 RAKEZE
MTHeEs - FRZE——F+_ANALEH -
BERE  ERRESEBAEZEHER
BEMEEARMRZAANE - WA BAREE
BERMEEZRE - $IERXZE -

BEA4HYB_TETELF=ZRE=F — —
% + A ¥ T DKSH Holding AG( 75 78 A&
DiethelmKellerSiberHegner » — A i+ 7%
RS EM2Z AR - BRARSE - DKSH) Z HiiliEE
e RZTB——FLtAZ_T——F+=A ' #
¥&{TGlaxoSmithKline plc (—HERBABFER S
FT(RR M RE% : GSK) KA FHFR ST (RMH R
5% : GSK) LM 2 AR 2 BT o

BAEER-ZZTZ=F)/\ARBERERAZE
AR (EB)B8LEMg - FR_T——_F+
ABBEABHRY EE ZITIL Foundation
Certificatef®Z€ - R-Z— 4 © HEKIBME
EREFRRE  ANIBMREBRHEES -

E*hﬁ?ﬁi(f%?ﬁﬂiﬂ ’ 40“573 T RAE B
BEAZEEA - BR-_ZE-—NFOAEZER
REBEMEKKE - fBZZEEEEﬁ%ﬁ B (i)
E*ﬂﬁ%%x%ﬁw&}ﬁﬁmf_ﬂﬁuuFf‘ﬁ?X&uxu‘l'&(ll)
B A B o 71 B0 A2 [ B Bt R AR T e R AR
RIEL  BRAERERRAITEETSE °

BEERZZEZXRNFREHNL TSR 2 EME
REZT 2y - FR T —TFEREAJava
FaEZAEBRERAE - RZZT—HF ' X
FFIEIBME ¥R FRRE - 5 BAIBMR A &
EEEE KIBMRAR SUREE -

2022 ANNUAL REPORT 53R

33



34

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESERGREEE[N

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Ms. Lee Chin Yee (“Ms. Lee”), aged 43, is the project director of the
Group. She joined the Group in February 2018 and is responsible for
leading, overseeing and managing various project implementation

of the Group.

Ms. Lee had over 10 years of experiences in business and technology
software implementation and consulting experience, serving various
types of entities including government authorities and private entities
in the financial services industry. She also had experiences in leading
business analyst team to analyse business operation, providing IT

consultation and delivering business software solutions.

Ms. Lee started her career as a software engineer in 2000. Ms. Lee
served as the functional consultant for a business intelligence reporting
project of Hong Leong Bank from 2008 to 2009. Ms. Lee then served
as the senior functional consultant for a borrower credit information
data mart project of Bank Negara Malaysia from 2009 to 2011. She
then served as the change control manager of a new submission
central bank reporting system project of OSK Bank in 2013. Ms. Lee
also worked as a business analyst lead for (i) an integrated statistical
system project of Bank Negara Malaysia from 2011 to 2015, (ii) a
XBRL corporate tax worksheet submission project of Lembaga Hasil
Dalam Negeri Malaysia from 2015 to 2016, (iii) an application software
system, infrastructure and services for ICT project of PERKESO from
2016 to present and (iv) a central bank reporting and COA mapping
blueprint project of ZANDBANK (Dubai) in 2019.

Ms. Lee has obtained a Master Degree of Business Administration
from Anglia Ruskin University in 2021 and a Bachelor Degree in
Computer Science from Coventry University in 2000. She received
an ITIL Foundation Certificate in IT Service Management in 2015.
In 2013, she completed the Certified Professional for Requirement
Engineering Foundation program while in 2000, she completed the

Microsoft Certified System Engineer NT program.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Ms. Lam Yat Ting (“Ms. Lam”), aged 40, was appointed as the

company secretary of the Group on 8 March 2018.

Ms. Lam has over 10 years of experience in accounting and audit. She
has been the financial controller of Man Lee Management Limited, a
subsidiary of Asia Resources Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 899) since
May 2018. She was the executive director and company secretary
of Elegance Commercial and Financial Printing Group Limited (now
known as Cornerstone Technologies Holdings Limited) (Stock Code:
8391) from September 2018 to June 2019. From October 2016 to April
2018, she worked at New World Facilities Management Company
Limited, a subsidiary of New World Development Company Limited
(Stock Code: 17) where her last position held was a finance manager.
Prior to that, she worked at a medium size C.P.A. firm from March 2008

to October 2016 where her last position held was an audit manager.

Ms. Lam obtained a Bachelor’s degree of Business Administration in
Accountancy with honours from City University of Hong Kong in 2006.
She is admitted as a qualified accountant of the Hong Kong Institute

of Certified Public Accountants since January 2013.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Maintaining the high levels of corporate governance and business
ethics is one of the Group’s major objectives. The Group considers
that conducting business in a reliable way will maximise its long term

interests and those of its stakeholders.

The Company has adopted the principles and the code provisions in
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Part
2 of Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules.

During the year ended 30 November 2022, the Company had complied

with the CG Code, except for the derivations as stated below:

Code Provision C.2.1

Pursuant to code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual. The division of responsibilities
between the chairman and chief executive officer should be clearly

established and set out in writing.

Mr. Chong Yee Ping is currently the Chairman of the Board and
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and is responsible for
formulating the overall business development strategy and planning
of the Group. In view that Mr. Chong has been responsible for the
overall management of the Group since its inception, the Board
believes that it is in the best interest of the Group to continue to
have Mr. Chong taken up both roles for effective management and
business development. The Board considers that the balance of
power and authority, accountability and independent decision-making
under our present arrangement will not be impaired because of the
diverse background and experience of the other executive Director,
non-executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors.
Further, the Audit Committee has free and direct access to the
Company’s external auditors and independent professional advisers
when it considers necessary. Therefore, the Directors consider that
the deviation from code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code is appropriate

in such circumstance.
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In order to maintain good corporate governance and to fully comply
with code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the Board comprises six
other experienced and high-calibre individuals including one other
executive Director, two non-executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors who would be able to offer advice from
various perspectives. In addition, for major decisions of the Group,
the Company will consult the relevant Board committees and senior
management. Considering the present size and the scope of business
of the Group, the Board considers that it is not in the best interest
of the Company and the shareholders as a whole to separate the
roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer, because the
separation would render the decision-making process of the Company
less efficient than the current structure. Therefore, the Board considers
that the present arrangement is beneficial to and in the interest of the

Company and the shareholders as a whole.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings set
out in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules (the “Standard of
Dealings”), as the code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions. Having made specific enquiries of all Directors, each of
the Directors has confirmed that he/she has complied with the Standard
of Dealings from the date on which the shares of the Company were
first listed on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Date”) and up to the

date of this annual report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

At the date of this annual report, the Board consists of two executive
Directors, two non-executive Directors and three independent non-

executive Directors as follows:
Executive Directors

Mr. Chong Yee Ping (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Liu Yan Chee James

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang
Mr. Lam Pang

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan San Ping
Ms. Ho Suet Man Stella
Mr. Su Chi Wen

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual

report.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Group, and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions
and performance. The Board is primarily responsible for the overall
business plans and strategies of the Group, the implementation
of the Group’s policies and strategies, monitoring of the business
performance, internal controls and risk management, environmental,
social and governance as well as supervision of the management of

the Group.

The Board delegates daily management, administration and operation
of the Group to the management. The delegated functions are reviewed

by the Board to ensure that they accommodate the needs of the Group.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

Exg

RAFHAY  EFSHMERITESE  MA
FRTEEN=BBIIFATESERDT

BiTES

BEMELE (T ERITRAEE)
RBEE

RS
M5 75 £

BAFHTES

CES T
DEE TS

WA S

BREF 2N FERRAEH EFRBRE
BB 4 -

EEEgCEfR

EXEe A AENEHAKE  YEEAEE
ZEH  REERRERRR EFETRAER
AEBEREGRELEKR BREAKEZ
B MRS BB EBRIE - MAREEE K ER
EIE CRR  HERERARERAEBZE
# o

EXeZIEEBARAKBEZAEER 17
BREETHE BFSRRIMRLBE AU
BRETEASERE -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
_|J—_ N TP '_q \A $& 4

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND RETIREMENT
OF DIRECTORS

The Directors have the power to appoint any person as a Director
either to fill a casual vacancy on the board or as an addition to the
existing board. Any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall
hold office until the first general meeting of members after his/her
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting and any
Director appointed as an addition to the existing board shall hold office
only until the next following annual general meeting of the Company

and shall then be eligible for re-election.

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company (the
“Articles”), one-third of the Directors for the time being (or if their
number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not
less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation at each annual
general meeting, provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every three
years. The Directors to retire by rotation shall include any Director
who wishes to retire and not offer himself/herself for re-election. Any
further Directors so to retire shall be those who have been longest
in office since their last re-election or appointment but as between
persons who became or were last re-elected Directors on the same
day those to retire will (unless they otherwise agree among themselves)

be determined by lot.

DIVERSITY OF THE BOARD

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy to achieve board
diversity through the consideration of a number of factors, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,

professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

The Nomination Committee monitors the implementation of the board

diversity policy to ensure its effectiveness.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises seven Directors,
one of which is female. Two of our Directors, namely, Mr. Chong Yee
Ping and Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang, are between the age group of 40 — 49
while other Directors are between the age group of 50 — 59. We have

three senior management, one of which is female.

All board and senior management appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective

criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

ZE - EEREREES

EEARZIEMNALTRES  NEHBESE
EHRHERJBIRTESTGIHEEES - £

MERENERERER2ES EEREH
EZERZERRRRERIL TARZKRE

BREMR MEFNEZTNEMREERTS
KREREZEE  EEBREARA TERRE
FRER/L  ERETAERBRER -

REARRZAKERA@R(TERZA]) &
R=nz—EF(MABIF=2FH  AMEE
28 BARIR=nz— ) EHERE - I
REFARVE=FRRRBFREHFERE
—R - WEREZEFEREABRERTR
BEEZEMES - HHEMBEREIZES
%‘éEEt?ﬁﬁ%i‘ﬁﬁéf%uﬂéﬁﬁ%iﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ
ATWERTIZES Bt RE—BAKANL
BEEEEFEALZH  UHEBRETHREES
AR EZRFEZRZHSTELRE ZBERK
i e

EEEHEZE L
ARARERMEETHEZTILERR  BBEE
BZERAE  BRETRMER - Fi&k - XL
EBEES  FELR Kk - ABRRBEF
B BREFEFEXNEZTE °

REZEE HEEBEFEXBZTIEEERZ

MITIME - AREBRML -

RAREAE  EEGHEEEFAK - HF
—ZARXE  HKMMBES  MEERILER
HEBEELRE - FheN T 4058 E495% - ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ%
EERANT50mE595% ° ZfFIE =85 &
BE  HR—BAXE -

EEENERRREBEZENERAA
MEA ZER  MABMEREESEKESZ T
£ BEREAGREBRENAZE -

2022 ANNUAL REPORT 53R

39



40

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CEREABE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All non-executive Directors have been appointed for a fixed term.
Pursuant to the letters of appointment between the Company and
the non-executive Directors, the non-executive Directors have been
appointed for a term of three years commencing from the Listing
Date which may be terminated by either party by giving three months’
written notice. Every Director is subject to re-election on retirement

by rotation in accordance with the Articles.

The Company has complied with Rule 5.05 of the GEM Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
directors, with at least one of them having appropriate professional

qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considers the independent
non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance with the

independence guidelines set out in the GEM Listing Rules.

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

The Company established an Audit Committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules
and the code provision D.3.3 of the CG Code. The Audit Committee
consists of three independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms.
Ho Suet Man Stella, Mr. Chan San Ping and Mr. Su Chi Wen. Ms. Ho
Suet Man Stella is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in the
assessment of auditors’ independence, appointment, re-appointment,
removal and remuneration, to provide an independent view of the
effectiveness of the Company’s financial reporting process, internal
control and risk management system, to oversee the audit process
and to perform other duties and responsibilities as assigned by the
Board. The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management the
accounting standards and practices adopted by the Group, and
discussing auditing, internal control, risk management and financial
reporting matters including the review of quarterly results, interim
results and annual results and financial statements for the year ended
30 November 2022.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established a Remuneration Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with code provision E.1.2 of the CG
Code. The Remuneration Committee consists of three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan San Ping, Mr. Su Chi Wen
and Ms. Ho Suet Man Stella. Mr. Chan San Ping is the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include (but
without limitation): (i) making recommendations to the Directors on
the policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and
senior management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing policies on such remuneration;
(ii) determining the terms of the specific remuneration package of the
Directors and senior management; and (iii) reviewing and approving
performance-based remuneration with reference to corporate goals
and objectives resolved by the Directors from time to time.

From 2023 onwards, the Remuneration Committee will also review the
share option scheme and other share schemes (if any) of the Company
on annual basis. During the year ended 30 November 2022, since
there was no share option granted under the share option scheme of
the Company, no material matter relating to the share option scheme
has been reviewed by the Remuneration Committee.

Nomination Committee

The Company also established a Nomination Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with code provision B.3.1 of the
CG Code. The Nomination Committee consists of three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Su Chi Wen, Mr. Chan San Ping
and Ms. Ho Suet Man Stella. Mr. Su Chi Wen is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

The primary function of the Nomination Committee is to, inter alia,
make recommendations to the Board to fill vacancies on the same
based on the Company’s board diversity policy and nomination policy.

NOMINATION POLICY

The secretary of the Company shall call a meeting of the Nomination
Committee, and invite nominations of candidates from the Board
members for consideration by the Nomination Committee. The
Nomination Committee may also put forward candidates who are
not nominated by the Board members. The factors which would be
used as reference by the Nomination Committee in assessing the
suitability of a proposed candidate for a director include, inter alia,
reputation for integrity, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge
and experience that are relevant to the Company’s business and
corporate strategy, willingness to devote adequate time to discharge
duties as a board member, diversity of the Board, and such other
perspectives appropriate to the Company’s business. The Nomination
Committee shall make recommendations for the Board’s consideration
and approval.
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BOARD MEETINGS

For a regular board meeting, at least 14 days’ notice will be given
to the Board members. For other board and committee meetings,
reasonable notices are generally given. An agenda and board papers
of the regular meetings are sent to all Directors in advance within
reasonable time and all Directors are free to contribute and share their
views at the meetings. Minutes of all board and committee meetings

are circulated to the Directors and open for inspection by the Directors.

The Articles contain provisions requiring the Directors to abstain from
voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving
any contract or arrangement or any other proposal in which such

Directors or any of their close associates have a material interest.

During the year ended 30 November 2022, the attendance of the
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Directors at the board meetings, committee meetings and general

meetings are summarised as follows:

Number of meetings attended/Number of meetings held
HEEERY ETEERR

Audit Nomination Remuneration

Board Committee Committee Committee General
Name of Directors Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
=g ENZEE REZEE FMzES
EZEH =] =E ] g3 =] BRRAE
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Chong Yee Ping EHETE 4/4 = — = 11
Mr. Liu Yan Chee James 2BHEE 4/4 = = = 11
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang SIS E 4/4 = = = 11
Mr. Lam Pang wis LA 4/4 = = = 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors  BIYFHTES
Mr. Chan San Ping REFEE 4/4 4/4 11 11 1/1
Ms. Ho Suet Man Stella [DEE3 e 4/4 4/4 11 1 1/1
Mr. Su Chi Wen B 4/4 4/4 11 1/1 1/1
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

According to code provision A.2 of the CG Code, the Board is
responsible for performing the corporate governance duties of the

Company.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices, continuous professional development of the Directors,
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the GEM Listing Rules,
and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in

this corporate governance report.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements of the Group. In preparing the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 November
2022, the Group has selected suitable accounting policies in
accordance with international accounting principles and applied
them consistently. A statement by the joint auditors of the Company
about its responsibilities for the financial statements is set out in the
independent joint auditors’ report contained in this annual report.
The Directors adopt the going concern approach in preparing the
consolidated financial statements and are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

Discussions on the Company’s environmental policies/performance
and our relationship with key stakeholders are covered by a separate
Environmental, Social and Governance Report which will be available
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange in due

course.
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CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
THE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. For the year ended 30
November 2022, each of the Directors received regular updates and
presentations on changes and developments to the Group’s business
and to the legislative and regulatory environments in which the Group
operates, and was also encouraged to attend relevant training courses.
During the year ended 30 November 2022, the Directors participated
in appropriate continuous professional development activities by ways
of attending seminars and/or reading materials relevant to the Group’s
business, the GEM Listing Rules and directors’ duties, and provided

his or her training records to the Company on a yearly basis.

Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Chong Yee Ping (Chairman and

Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Liu Yan Chee James BB EE
Non-executive Directors FHITES

Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang AEREE A

Mr. Lam Pang RIS 55 A=
Independent non-executive Directors BIYFBITES
Mr. Chan San Ping BRAEF &

Ms. Ho Suet Man Stella AIZEEL+

Mr. Su Chi Wen BBk E
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The Company will from time to time provide briefings to all Directors
to refresh their duties and responsibilities. The Directors are also
encouraged to attend relevant training courses provided by legal

advisers and/or any appropriate institutions.
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COMPANY SECRETARY’S TRAINING

During the year ended 30 November 2022, Ms. Lam Yat Ting, the
company secretary of the Company, had taken no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional trainings to update her skill and knowledge
as required under the GEM Listing Rules.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Company engaged Mazars CPA Limited and Mazars LLP (together
“Mazars”) as its joint auditors for the year ended 30 November 2022.
The analysis of the auditors’ remuneration for the year ended 30
November 2022 is set out as follow:
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REBEEZT_Z_F+—A=+tAHLFE &R
EIPA/NGIED i%mﬁ?ﬁiﬂhﬁ”GEMLm%ﬁﬁ‘J
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AAREZETEZRR (BB SIMEBMA
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[Mazars ) BEBE-T-_—_F+—A=+AHL
FEZHMEZEM BE_T-_—_F+—A=
THIEFEZ B FTMIEIN AT -

Fee amount

ERASE
RM’000
Vi S

Audit services ZERS
Mazars Mazars 493
Local auditors in Malaysia (Not Mazars) 5 SR 28 MY A b AZ AT (FEMazars) 25
Total “Er 518
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has responsibility for maintaining appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems of the Group. The
Board has delegated responsibility to the Audit Committee to review

the Group’s risk management and internal control matters annually.

For the year ended 30 November 2022, the Group did not have an
internal audit function as required under code provision D.2.5 of
the CG Code. The Company has engaged an external independent
internal control consultant to review the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems based on code provision D.2.2 of the CG
Code. The Audit Committee reviewed the internal control review report
issued by the external independent consultant on the Company’s
risk management and internal control systems in respect of the year
ended 30 November 2022 and considered that they are effective and
adequate. The Board assessed the effectiveness of internal control
systems by considering the internal control review report and reviews

performed by the Audit Committee and concurred with them.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS TO CONVENE AN
EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING AND PUT
FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SUCH MEETING

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles, any one or more shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth
of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings shall at all time have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the secretary of the Company at the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)

by the Company.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

R B T Ik A0 R B A

EEe AR ASEEE ARz RRE R
MAMEERS - EZETRNERZESTRE

T SFRIFAKECRBREERAPEITS
z -

ﬁé_?__¢+ A=1+RLEFE  A5&H

EAEERTRISFARXED.2.5KIE TR
EZNBEZBEE - RARBERETFREE
D.2. 2§ R THNEIB L ASDEE IS EART » ARRBI AR
SECEAREERABEZERR - BZEEG
EEMBIEBYBERARAEEEE S

Ft—A=ZTALFEZRAREERABEE
HAZAMEERARE - YRRBEFAERAE

AR -EFERERNBEIT WA RE REZ
RESET BRI RFEANEZRRZEN
% UYHEHRRER -

BRREBMBRRGHIAERREBASR
Z2EZ &R

BEERBRNESSE - M — kA ERESR

EREARBTIPREARRBREBRA(AEXQA
RERREG 2 IHEE) T 9 2 —HRRPME R
EREEBRMANFEETEHMERHEEDEK
(MU BARRIZBEBEBLEEME)  BERKE
Ee[RABRRENAS @ UWEBZE kR IER
ZAEMER  BRARSERNEZZERE2@AR
NEIT - EREZEHRB2IBERN  EEER
FEAMBEAREZREF @ MIEE2ERALA
BENREARELHLEE  MEZ2ERKATH
EEQUBAMELACHEAERIEAARR
AIMIEZ ERALER -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
_|J—_ N TP '_q \A $& 4

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investors’ understanding
of the Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company
endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders. To
ensure that the shareholders and potential investors are provided
with ready, equal and timely access to balanced and understandable
information about the Company, the Company has established several
channels to communicate with the shareholders as follows:

(i) corporate communications such as annual reports, interim
reports, quarterly reports and circulars are issued in printed
form and are available on the website of the Stock Exchange
at www.hkexnews.hk and on the website of the Company at
www.mindtelltech.com;

(i) periodic announcements are published on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company;

(iii) corporate information is made available on the Company’s
website; and

(iv) annual and extraordinary general meetings provide a forum
for the shareholders to make comments and exchange views
with the Directors and senior management.

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and enhancing
communication with the existing shareholders and potential investors.
It welcomes suggestions from investors, stakeholders and the public.
Enquiries to the Board or the Company may be sent by post to the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong (Attention: The
Company Secretary).

The Company reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the
shareholders’ communication policy and considered it to be effective.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company adopted the amended and restated Memorandum
and Articles of Association of the Company on 19 September 2018
and it took effect on the Listing Date. A copy of the amended and
restated Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company is
posted on the Stock Exchange’s website at www.hkexnews.hk and the
Company’s website at www.mindtelltech.com. During the year ended
30 November 2022, there has been no change in the Company’s
Memorandum and Articles of Association. To comply with the GEM
Listing Rules, resolutions will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company to adopt the second amended and
restated Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company .
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The Directors are pleased to present this annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of Mindtell Technology Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year
ended 30 November 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the provision of system integration and
development services, IT outsourcing services and maintenance and
consultancy services. Details of its principal subsidiaries as at 30
November 2022 are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial

statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND FUTURE BUSINESS
DEVELOPMENT

The business review of the Group for the year ended 30 November
2022 and future business development of the Group are set out
in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

The risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing are set out
in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
annual report. In addition, various financial risks have been disclosed

in Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Details of segment information are set out in Note 3 to the consolidated

financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 November 2022 and
the financial positions of the Company and the Group as at that date
are set out in the audited consolidated financial statements on pages
69 to 151 of this annual report.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”),
pursuant to which the Company may distribute dividends to the
shareholders of the Company by way of cash or shares. Any
distribution of dividends shall be in accordance with the Articles and

the distribution shall achieve continuity, stability and sustainability.

The recommendation of the payment of any dividend is subject to the
absolute discretion of the Board, and any declaration of final dividend
will be subject to the approval of the shareholders. In proposing any
dividend payout, the Board shall also take into account, inter alia, the
Group’s earnings per share, the reasonable return on investment of the
investors and the shareholders in order to provide incentive to them
to continue to support the Group in their long-term development, the
financial conditions and business plan of the Group, and the market

sentiment and circumstances.

The Dividend Policy will be reviewed from time to time and there is
no assurance that a dividend will be proposed or declared in any

specific periods.

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for the
year ended 30 November 2022.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 152 of this annual report.
This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial

statements in this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 30 November 2022, the revenue attributable to the Group’s
largest customer accounted for approximately 62.2% (2021: approximately
34.9%) of the Group’s total revenue and the revenue attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers accounted for approximately 85.6% (2021: approximately

95.2%) of the Group’s total revenue.

During the year ended 30 November 2022, the costs incurred in
respect of the Group’s largest supplier accounted for approximately
77.4% (2021: approximately 42.7%) of the Group’s total cost of services
and materials sold incurred and the costs incurred in respect of the
Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 96.2%
(2021: approximately 88.2%) of the Group’s total cost of services and

materials sold incurred.
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None of the Directors or any of their close associates, or any shareholder
(who to the knowledge of the Directors own 5% or more of the issued
Shares of the Company) had any interest in any of the Group’s major

customers or suppliers during the year ended 30 November 2022.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 30 November 2022 are set out in Note

12 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the year
ended 30 November 2022 are set out in Note 23 to the consolidated

financial statements.

DEBENTURES

The Company did not issue any debentures during the year ended
30 November 2022.

RESERVES

Details of movement in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year ended 30 November 2022 are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 72 to 73 and in Note 24(a)

to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 30 November 2022, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution to the shareholders of the Company amounted to
approximately RM6.3 million.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

None of the Company or any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 30 November 2022.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the
laws of the Cayman Islands, the jurisdiction in which the Company was
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer shares on a
pro-rata basis to its existing shareholders of the Company.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company conditionally adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) on 19 September 2018. The purpose of the Share
Option Scheme is to grant an option to subscribe for shares of the
Company (the “Option”) to eligible persons as defined in the Share
Option Scheme (including, inter alia, directors, employees, suppliers,
customers and consultants of the Group) as incentives or rewards for
their contribution to the Group.

Subject to rules on grant of options to connected persons of the
Company under the GEM Listing Rules, the total number of Shares
issued and which may fall to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of our Group (including both exercised or outstanding options)
to each participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of
the issued share capital of the Company for the time being, and any
further grant exceeding the said limit shall be subject to shareholders’
approval at general meeting.

The exercise price per Share under the Share Option Scheme will
be a price determined by the Directors but shall not be less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of the offer of grant,
which must be a business day; (ii) the average closing price of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant;
and (iii) the nominal value of a Share.

Unless otherwise cancelled or amended, the Share Option Scheme will
remain in force for a period of 10 years from the date of its adoption on
19 September 2018, which shall expire on 18 September 2028. Since
the adoption of the Share Option Scheme and up to 30 November
2022, no Option has been granted by the Company. At the beginning
and the end of the year ended 30 November 2022 and as of the date
of this annual report, the Company had 39,000,000 shares available
for issue under the Share Option Scheme (representing 10% of the
existing issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this
annual report). An option may be accepted within 21 days from the
date of offer. A sum of HK$1.00 shall be payable on acceptance.
Unless determined by the Directors otherwise, there is no minimum
holding period before it can be exercised. Details of the Share Option
Scheme are set out in the paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme”
of the appendix headed “Statutory and General Information” of the
Prospectus.
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Save for the Share Option Scheme, the Company has not adopted

any other share scheme.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save and except for the Share Option Scheme as disclosed in the
paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” above, no equity-linked
agreement that (i) will or may result in the Company issuing shares
or (ii) requires the Company enter into any agreement that will or
may result in the Company issuing shares, was entered into by the
Company during the year ended 30 November 2022 or subsisted at

the end of the year.

DONATION

During the year ended 30 November 2022, the Group did not make
any charitable donations (2021: Nil).

USE OF PROCEEDS

Details of the use of proceeds are set out in the section headed

“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 30 November
2022 and up to the date of this annual report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chong Yee Ping (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Liu Yan Chee James
Non-executive Directors

Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang
Mr. Lam Pang

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan San Ping
Ms. Ho Suet Man Stella
Mr. Su Chi Wen
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DIRECTORS

Biographies of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual

report.

Pursuant to the Articles, one-third of the Directors for the time being
(or if their number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest
to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation at
each annual general meeting, provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once

every three years.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of three years commencing
from the Listing Date and shall continue thereafter unless and until
terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing served
by either party on the other and is subject to termination provisions

therein and in the Articles.

Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company
for a term of three years commencing from the Listing Date which may

be terminated by either party by giving three months’ written notice.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable within one year without payment

of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors a confirmation of independence pursuant to rule
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considers all the independent
non- executive Directors to be independent.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY, REMUNERATION OF
DIRECTORS AND FIVE INDIVIDUALS WITH
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emolument of the Directors and five individuals with
highest emoluments are set out in Notes 7 and 8 to the consolidated

financial statements.

The emolument policy for the employees of the Group is stipulated by
the Directors on the basis of the employees’ individual performance,

qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the remuneration
committee and determined by the Board, having regard to the
Company’s operating results, individual performance and market

comparables.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ OR DIRECTORS’
INTERESTS IN SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transaction, arrangement or
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director of the Company or an entity associated with him/her or a
controlling shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries has
or had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
any time during or at the end of the year ended 30 November 2022.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director is entitled to be indemnified
out of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which
he/she may sustain or incur in or about execution of duties of his/her
office or otherwise in relation thereto provided that such indemnity shall
not extend to any matter in respect of fraud or dishonesty committed

by the Director.

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’ liability
insurance since February 2019, which provides appropriate cover

for the Directors.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is of the view that save and except for the deviations from
code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the Company has met the code
provisions set out in the CG Code and Corporate Governance Report
contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. A report on the
principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
is set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” of

this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group recognises its responsibility to protect the environment
from its business activities. The Group has endeavored to comply
with the laws and regulations regarding environmental protection
and encourages environmental protection and promotes awareness

towards environmental protections among our staff and employees.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year ended 30 November 2022, to the best of knowledge
of the Directors, there was no material breach of or non-compliance
with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has a

significant impact on the businesses and operations of the Group.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken by the Group are

set out in Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 30 November 2022, the Directors are not aware
of any related party transactions which constituted a non-exempt
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction of the

Company under the GEM Listing Rules.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHRE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,

UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 30 November 2022, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)), which were
required (a) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO; or (b) pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred therein;
or (c) pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules to be

notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Long position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company:

Capacity and

Name of Directors nature of interest

Exps BRRERME
Mr. Chong Yee Ping (Note 1)
acting in concert
EEREE (M) RIEERR R —BITHAL
Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang (Note 1)
acting in concert

WBFEE (W1 RIpEEEGE N - BTBAL

Mr. Liu Yan Chee James Beneficial owner

2RBEE BREBA
Mr. Lam Pang Beneficial owner
% E BREBA

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

Interests of controlled corporation and person

Interests of controlled corporation and person

EERFETRABREQARELAH
EEZBRG  HEARORES2ERER
KRB

RZE-_—_F+—A=+H  EFERADH
ZITHABRAER T&ﬁﬁﬂwﬁl(m%ﬁ%%
EBIESTIEEHF RBAEERAE %&Hﬁgﬁﬂm
Bl EXVER) 2 B fn - BRI REHH
H(a)EIREFFRAEKRIIZEXVIEBET RS ﬁ
MEARR R 2 EESAR  S(b)A
AIRIRE 5 R B E & B 35214 z\ésafa\m)%
BrEEMAZERIAR  2i(c)siREG
LT BIES 46 E567THREME AR T&wa

Elaw

FiZ S BORB AT ¢
REQBDROHEBERG TR -
Percentage of
Number of the Company’s

shares interested issued share

(Note 2) capital
BEREZRHEE EARRAREBRITRE
(Kizz2) Bk
196,560,000 (L) 50.4%
196,560,000 (L) 50.4%
57,720,000 (L) 14.8%
38,220,000 (L) 9.8%



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHRE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,

UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

(continued)

Long position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company: (continued)

Notes:

(1) Delicate Edge Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Chong
Yee Ping whereas King Nordic Limited is wholly and beneficially owned
by Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang. Each of Delicate Edge Limited and King Nordic
Limited holds 98,280,000 Shares, representing 25.2% of the total issued
share capital of the Company.

Mr. Chong Yee Ping and Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang are parties acting in
concert (having the meaning ascribed to it under the Hong Kong Code
on Takeovers and Mergers (the “Takeovers Code”) as confirmed by
them in writing. As such, each of Mr. Chong Yee Ping, Mr. Siah Jiin
Shyang, Delicate Edge Limited and King Nordic Limited is deemed to
be interested in 196,560,000 Shares held by Delicate Edge Limited
and King Nordic Limited in aggregate under the SFO.

2) The Letter “L” denotes as long positions in the shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 November 2022, none of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company and/or any of their
respective associates had any interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and/or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the SFO
or the GEM Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the paragraphs headed “Directors’
and chief executives’ interests and short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations” and “Share Option Scheme” above, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries or associated corporations was a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors and chief executives of the
Company (including their respective spouse and children under 18
years of age) to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of the
shares or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any of its associated corporations at any time during the year ended
30 November 2022.

EERFETHRAEBREQARELBH
ZEZEG  HEROREZZEHZR

M B
RE ()

RAEQXTDROBEBERD TR (4)

Hit

(1) Delicate Edge Limitedfi$28 Bt L2 EE
A 0 MIKing Nordic Limited d #f #8# 75
L2 EERHES ° Delicate Edge Limited &
King Nordic Limited# £ # % 98,280,000/%
BRI - AEAR R A B FITIRAAEEE25.2% °

BAEE RS ER TR EBEER - 1
EB—HITAAT(AEELGIMBRE T
RIC[Y B8 TR |)H TR F iz i &) - A
Ut RBEFRBEIRG - EEESEE - H
B8 SE £~ Delicate Edge Limited B King
Nordic Limited# B ## A1 Delicate Edge
Limited % King Nordic Limited& £# %52~
196,560,000/R iR 17 B #am ©
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EEBEARORES 2 EF
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

ESEHRE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE

COMPANY

So far as the Directors are aware, at 30 November 2022, the following
persons have or are deemed or taken to have an interest and/or short
position in the shares or the underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

Long position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company:

Name of substantial
shareholders

FTERRHSR
Delicate Edge Limited
(Note 1)
Delicate Edge Limited
(KraE1)
King Nordic Limited (Note 1)

King Nordic Limited (ffi#1)

Mr. Liu Yan Chee James

Capacity and
nature of interest

SO RERMEE

Beneficial owner and person acting in
concert

ERmBEAR—BITBHAL

Beneficial owner and person acting in
concert

EREEAR—BITHAL

Beneficial owner

2IRBHELE EREBA

Mr. Lam Pang

RIS S5 ERERA

Notes:

(1)

@)

Delicate Edge Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Chong
Yee Ping whereas King Nordic Limited is wholly and beneficially owned
by Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang. Each of Delicate Edge Limited and King Nordic
Limited holds 98,280,000 Shares, representing 25.2% of the total issued
share capital of the Company.

Mr. Chong Yee Ping and Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang are parties acting in
concert (having the meaning ascribed to it under the Takeovers Code)
as confirmed by them in writing. As such, each of Mr. Chong Yee Ping,
Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang, Delicate Edge Limited and King Nordic Limited
is deemed to be interested in 196,560,000 Shares held by Delicate
Edge Limited and King Nordic Limited in aggregate under the SFO.

The Letter “L” denotes as long positions in the shares of the Company.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

(1)

2)

FERRREMALTREQXTARG KA
RO ZERRKXR

BEERE  R-T-—_F+—A=+8 "M
TALTRAR BB A S AH B & B HARAR
EREEREARIEESF LB ERPIEXVEE2R
EIN R MEX AR R B WEZ HERIOXR
HAE BN IRIERE 5 N H B 151 5 336165 /A H
ARRIFEZBERA M EEIRR

REDTROHEERG 2FA -

Percentage of

Number of the Company’s

shares interested issued share
(Note 2) capital
REERZRHEE HEITAERITRA
(HizE2) Bk
196,560,000 (L) 50.4%
196,560,000 (L) 50.4%
57,720,000 (L) 14.8%
38,220,000 (L) 9.8%

Delicate Edge Limitedf$EEXEE 2 EE
Z#H © MKing Nordic Limited 1 #145# 5%
L2 EEFREAE ° Delicate Edge Limited &
King Nordic Limited# B #5%98,280,000/%
B AR E]E BITIRABEI25.2% °

HUEERSEERFBFESLEZEER B
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HZEE) Bt RIEEZEFRHEEH -
#EESEE - HIWHELE - Delicate Edge
Limited % King Nordic Limited & & #8 7
R Delicate Edge Limited X% King Nordic
Limited & #5462 196,560,000 88 % 17 + ##
B#m o

FELEXRERDPZIHE -



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHRE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 November 2022, the Company
has not been notified by any persons (other than the Directors or
chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were entered

into or in existence during the year.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors and controlling shareholders of the Company nor
their respective associates (as defined under the GEM Listing Rules)
had any interest in any other companies as at 30 November 2022

which may, directly or indirectly compete with the Group’s business.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Mr. Chong Yee Ping, Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang, Delicate Edge Limited and
King Nordic Limited, being the controlling shareholders (as defined
under the GEM Listing Rules) of the Company, have entered into a
deed of non-competition dated 19 September 2018 in favour of the
Company (the “Deed of Non-Competition”). Details of the Deed of
Non-Competition was set out in the section headed “Relationship with

Controlling Shareholders” of the Prospectus.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company have
reviewed the status of compliance and confirmed that all the
undertakings under the Deed of Non- Competition have been complied
with by Mr. Chong Yee Ping, Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang, Delicate Edge

Limited and King Nordic Limited up to the date of this annual report.

FERRREMATRAEAQARSG RE
AR zEER AR E)

BREXHBEREEIN RZTZ—F+—A=+
B ARBETAEEMAT(ESRAREE
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ERBEEHFRPEROIEXVEE2REIDE 2
EXAERARNBRE 2 ERIRE ~ HEHER
RIEEH R EEGIE336E R EEBARET
BzRREMzERIKE ©

BEEEYN
REAR  BETUXFEERAEERRAE

MEBRIDEH 2 ERRITREL o

&t“’ *Eﬁ

MEEERAAAERBREXFEESSE2HE
AMEZERGEMEMHRANR T =_—F+—H
=1TH RIBERNEEEGEENHEEERK
B2 AR EAM R B TS o
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8 H W 5t 4 - J 8% 7 %& A& - Delicate Edge

Limited &2King Nordic Limited (BIZ /2 Rl A% A%

REZXRGEMEMAAD)BIZABR-Z—

NENATNBURRR AR S AZTHF 2T

((THRFRE]) - BETHI B ZFEEHNE
AR AR B AR AR SR 2 BA{R | —6f o

BEEAFHBY  ARABUFATEFE M
FEFBERATERETERLEE  WEFLE
Delicate Edge Limited 2King Nordic Limited
EETHANBFRIBEA T ZAGE o

2022 ANNUAL REPORT 53R

59



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHRE

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
to the best knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float under the GEM Listing Rules since the Listing
Date and up to the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this
annual report.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 November
2022 were jointly audited by Mazars CPA Limited, Certified Public
Accountants of Hong Kong and Mazars LLP, Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants of Singapore. A resolution will be proposed at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint
Mazars CPA Limited as auditors of the Company. There has been
no change in the Group’s auditors in any of the preceding 3 years.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

As from 30 November 2022 to the date of this annual report, the
Board is not aware of any significant events that have occurred which
require disclosure herein.

On behalf of the board
Mr. Chong Yee Ping
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 28 February 2023

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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INDEPENDENT JOINT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B B E 2 BE R

m

To the members of
Mindtell Technology Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Mindtell
Technology Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 69 to 151, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 November
2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including

a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 30
November 2022, and of its financial performance and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the “Joint Auditors’ Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained

is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

ZMindtell Technology Limited
2ERE
(RASESTMA T ZHRAE])
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=
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Mindtell Technology Limited ([& A ") K& E
MEAR(SABAIESE]) 2REMBRE
WA RERBER_E-_—F+— A=+
BzEmaWBikng  BEZRAILFEZRA
BakEM2AKEER  SREEREBHRREET
EHREMER  URGEMBHREMTE - 2245
TESHTERBE -

REEZBMR A - A6 M FEHRERE BIERR
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INDEPENDENT JOINT AUDITORS’ REPORT

B B B BT 3RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter
ERERSEE

Revenue recognition
W s R

Refer to significant accounting policy and critical accounting
estimate and judgement in Note 2 and the disclosures of

revenue in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

RIBMEE2 2 B & AT BUR A K B 88 & 5HEFT R AT A K M 54
ZEEMBRRNRKEKE -

The Group recognised revenue of approximately
RM12,467,000 (2021: approximately RM17,177,000) from the
provision of system integration and development services,
IT outsourcing services and maintenance and consultancy

services for the year ended 30 November 2022.

EEBERREE T _—Ft+—A=ZtHLFEZRHEES
BERFAERE - AMBHRINA BRTS LA R 415 K B8 R AR TS 2 IR
A 512,467,000 (ZF=—4F : #9/F#17,177,0007T) °

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

REELER

RRAMEZRE 2 EXHE - BREXER
REBMEZAMR 2GRV BRRMEER
EREZER - BMEEREBSEAVBHRRR
HABRAKREREZEEE AT EHZE
EERTERBR o

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMRELTOAEERBERREERER

Our procedures, among others, included:
HIMZ 2R (R e4E)RE

(a) obtaining an understanding of and evaluating the
design, and determining the implementation of the
Group’s key internal controls over the contract revenue
recognition including the control over recording work

done, invoicing and cash receipts;

THRRER REE BESEEHGHRERRIEE
ANEPEE I (BERHE TR I « HFRERREWIER 2 )8
FielE5R

(b) assessing the reasonableness of the basis and

assumptions of the estimated total contract costs;

A AR BB ELERBRERERE |

(c) comparing actual total contract costs incurred to
estimated total contract costs of contracts completed
during the year, on a sample basis, to assess the

reasonableness of management’s estimation;

R R FANE TR A DMELZ BER G OKRARE KRG
FHANRARE  LFHEEEE AR E A H



INDEPENDENT JOINT AUDITORS’ REPORT

B R BEM R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter (continued)
BRERSE(E)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Wz fERR ()

Revenue from provision of system integration and
development services of approximately RM7,764,000 (2021:
approximately RM9,627,000) is recognised over time by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation using input method
as the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

REUERGEAE AR A RERRE 2Kt D 5455
7,764,00070( = F = —4F : 4155 19,627,0007T )RR BT
FRABTZERBER  LWBAKBERREER - HaER BS
BENBRAOTARIARELY BEEFERAENEE B B
SEARGFIATEUNBIES EBLORIFIA ©

We have identified the above matter as a key audit
matter because the amount involved is significant and
management used significant judgements and estimations
to determine the progress towards complete satisfaction of

the performance obligation at the reporting date.
BME#MN EMEBEERFEEREE  REARILEES

R BEEENBE AHMEAERHE R A EECEETHE
HMBRHNETZERIER -

REEZEER W)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter (continued)
BERERPNTEEEHEERERSZE(E)

(d) performing arithmetical check on the schedule of
the calculation of the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation
under input method, on a sample basis, based on the
schedule prepared by the management with information
including contract sum, estimated total contract costs

and contract costs incurred (the “Schedule”); and

RBEEBHEZAHNFTE - EF S HRARER KRS KK
ARz EER(GEER]) HETHD LEREE
TTHEREERSE + R

(e) verifying key terms in contracts (including contract sum,
deliverables timetable and milestones), estimated total
contract costs and contract costs incurred as set out
in the Schedule, on a sample basis, to the respective
signed contracts, approved cost budgets and relevant
supporting documents of the contract costs incurred

respectively.

DRAMBEREERERMAA LA
B EERFER M)
HAFEREAN  RERKAFERIEEE
el

HRERER(BEENE
- fhEH A AR R A HKAE
KPR
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INDEPENDENT JOINT AUDITORS’ REPORT

B R BLEM R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter (continued)
ERERSZE(E)

AREXEEE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter (continued)
BERERPNTEEEHEERERSZE(E)

Loss allowance for expected credit losses (“ECL”) on trade receivables

BEZREUFBERZEHEEER([BRHEEER ) ZERRE

Refer to significant accounting policy and critical
accounting estimate and judgement in Note 2 and
the disclosures of trade receivables in Note 16 to the

consolidated financial statements.

R B G FT R A K R & et (45T B B A B AR
162 kA MMM K E 5 EUGRIRIEE

At 30 November 2022, the carrying amount (net of loss
allowance) of trade receivables amounted to approximately
RM2,842,000 (2021: approximately RM8,808,000),
represent 18.1% (2021: 28.1%) of the total assets of the
Group.

RZZB_—F+—A=+H8 ' EZEKIEZERAFEGIRE
BEE) N AEEF2842,0007T( = F=—14F : #75#8,808,000
) REEBEEEEBEII81%(=F=——%F : #128.1%) °

Management performed credit evaluations for the Group’s
customers and assessed ECL of trade receivables. These
assessments were focused on the customers’ settlement
record and their current repayment ability, and also
adjusted for forward-looking factors and took into account
information specific to respective customers as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the

customers operated.

EREY BEEEZRPETEMME - LA HEKRFIRNTE
HEEER %EHAcEHRTPNAELEREER &
Reeh - UHHAEEERETHBEREESATPZEER
BAREEPREMENKERERAZIESR °

We have identified the above matter as a key audit matter
due to the significant amounts involved and the significant
judgements were made by the management in determining

the ECL on trade receivables.

BZME#AN EASEEATEEREE  RARPREHEE
A BEBETRERKRENTEHEEERRIELEXH
K o

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

Our procedures, among others, included:
BMzRF (KR eE)RE :

(a) obtaining management’'s assessment of ECL on trade
receivables and assessed the reasonableness of the key
underlying information referenced by the management;

and

ERERBHRKFENEREEBE G - LaEE
BESIRNEREREEZEEN &

(b) assessing management’s judgement over the ECL
and creditworthiness of the customers by assessing,
on a sample basis, the available information, such as
background information of the customers, concentration
risk of customers, the Group’s actual loss experience
(our examination of the customers’ payment records
during the current year and subsequent to the end of
the reporting period, as well as the historical collection
records), and the forward-looking factors specific to the

customers.

BRMETEATEZEEZEN  NEFERER BB
FHEERE  FPHNETAR - EXENEREBBELR
(HMPEAFERREMRE  ARELRELERER
FPr#EFEE)REFREFIBANRESES  FHEE

EHFRBEEERRTFEEMNFE -



INDEPENDENT JOINT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B R BEM R

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the 2022
annual report of the Company, but does not include the consolidated

financial statements and our joint auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that

fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB, and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have

no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the

Group’s financial reporting process.

H &
ERRESEAHEMERAEE  HMBER R
ERAR T —FERFHEN  ETEE
A MR R A E B SR A M TR
A ZRE -
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1E
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INDEPENDENT JOINT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B B E R BE R

JOINT AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a joint
auditors’ report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards

or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated

financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

BEZBMEERGESMBHRRZEE
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INDEPENDENT JOINT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B B E 2 BE R

JOINT AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our joint auditors’ report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
joint auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may

cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves

fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible

for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related actions taken to

eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

BECBMEERGESMBRRZEE
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INDEPENDENT JOINT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B B E R BE R

JOINT AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our joint auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably

be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

BEZBMEERGESMBHRRZEE

/43
(#8)

REBREREBBZIEFET  HFVREMLE
ERHAHARGEEVBRRIBECRA/ER -
EmEK R EZER - RIS ERFE XKD
WETHAMZFFTE  RIDEFIHRPIELER
REEZEFER  HEBEFRZBERT &
MEERERRERMER I AEMEREETR
HEBRARABFTHEIMNEAM T EERSH
BEASERR

communication.

Mazars CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants,
Hong Kong

42nd Floor, Central Plaza

18 Harbour Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

28 February 2023

The engagement director of
Mazars CPA Limited on the
audit jointly resulting in this
independent joint auditors’

report is:

Fong Chin Lung
Practising Certificate number:
P0O7321

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

Mazars LLP

Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants of
Singapore

135 Cecil Street

#10-01

Singapore 069536

28 February 2023

The engagement partner of
Mazars LLP on the audit
jointly resulting in this
independent joint auditors’

report is:

Tan Chee Tyan
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

SAEER

Hfth 2 W & &

Year ended 30 November 2022 HiZ -~ T~ —

FH—A=1THLEE

2022 2021
—E-C—F —E_—F

Notes RM’000 RM’000
HiaF BT ot

Revenue Wz 4 12,467 17,177
Cost of services and materials sold PR 7% & B E M BB AR (9,088) (14,472)
Gross profit EH 3,379 2,705
Other income HAhA 5 101 252
Reversal of impairment loss on the B S WA ZRE

trade receivables B R R E 28 926 -
Administrative expenses THRX (10,900) (9,104)
Finance costs BhE A A 6 (98) (72)
Loss before income tax BRPTSBL AT B R 6 (6,592) (6,219)
Income tax expenses FriSfiA 9 (144) (48)
Loss for the year FEEE (6,736) (6,267)
Other comprehensive Hip2E W= (BAx)

income (expenses)
Item that will not be reclassified to BT EENHE2 Em s HE

profit or loss
Exchange difference on translation of BREARARHBHRKEZT

the Company’s financial statements  EHEZEHRZER

to presentation currency 1,056 -
Item that may be reclassified Hig [ EF S EE R

subsequently to profit or loss ZIEH
Exchange difference on translation of HREGINITE R 7 2 [EH =2

foreign subsidiaries (814) (22)
Other comprehensive income FEHMEmEYES(FX)

(expenses) for the year 242 (22)
Total comprehensive expenses for FEZHARX

the year (6,494) (6,289)
Loss per share, BRER(ERR#HE)

basic and diluted (RM cents) (B¥2) 10 (1.73) (1.61)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A B R R AR

At 30 November 2022 A-Z - —F+—H=+H

70

2021
—E-—F
Notes RM’000 RM’'000
Hat BE¥Tx BT
Non-current assets RBEE

Property, plant and equipment W% - B RERE 12 1,580 1,851
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 13 593 974
Intangible assets EEE 14 2,045 3,060
4,218 5,885

Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 R H M U FKIE 16 3,105 9,590
Contract assets BHEE 17 1,051 287
Restricted bank balances SRR BRI TAE B8R 18 649 466
Bank balances and cash RITREBRES 19 6,644 15,089
11,449 25,432

Current liabilities nEAE
Trade and other payables B 5 KR Efh e FRIA 20 2,874 11,631
Contract liabilities aHEE 17 771 828
Income tax payables JEAT PS50 904 978
Interest-bearing borrowings STEEE 21 829 853
Lease liabilities HEAE 13 204 237
5,582 14,527

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B B R R R

At 30 November 2022 A-Z - —F+—H=+H

2021
—E-—F
Notes RM’000 RM’'000
KtaF BEFT FEEFT
Net current assets REBEEFE 5,867 10,905
Total assets less current liabilities REERTBEE 10,085 16,790
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIB A G 22 23 31
Lease liabilities HEBE 13 771 974
794 1,005
NET ASSETS EEFE 9,291 15,785
Capital and reserves EAR
Share capital A& 23 2,067 2,067
Reserves & 7,224 13,718
TOTAL EQUITY fEmiaE 9,291 ISNE35
These consolidated financial statements on pages 69 to 151 were FEOEEIS1BMHGEVBHEEN —_ZE=_=F
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 —B-tN\BEESeiEREETZE - FAh
February 2023 and signed on its behalf by THEERREE
Chong Yee Ping Liu Yan Chee James
$EEIR 228
Director Director
£ e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEDBER

Year ended 30 November 2022 HE—-Z— —

Ft+—A=tTHILFE

Reserves
G
Share Share Capital Exchange  Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve losses Total
A K& (E EAGHE B i G 2itER @t
RM000 RM000 RM000 RM000 RM000 RM000
BB BB BB BB BB BB
(Note 23)  (Note 25(a))  (Note 25(b))  (Note 25(c))
(Brzte3)  (Wiosa)  (Mid2sm)  (Hiates(ec)
At 1 December 2020 RIZZ2E+-A-H 2,067 28,732 4,952 (318) (13,359) 22,074
Loss for the year FREE — — = = (6,267) (6,267)
Other comprehensive expenses: Ht2ERX :
ltem that may be reclassified A EHEE
subsequently to profit or loss ZEH
Exchange difference on translation of ~ AEESNEAR
foreign subsidiaries ZERER — — — (22) = (22)
Total comprehensive expenses FRPEEHAX
for the year — — — (22) (6,267) (6,289)
At 30 November 2021 W Z=Z=-F+-A=+H 2,067 28,732 4,952 (340) (19,626) 15,785

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 30 November 2022 HE - - —F+—A=+HILFE

Reserves
it
Share Share Capital Exchange Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve losses
B B EE N B iR
RI000 RI000 RI000 RI000 RIr000 RI000
-1 59 -1 59 -1 59 -1 59 -1 5o -1 5o
(Note 23)  (Note 25(a))  (Note 25(b))  (Note 25(c))
(Wi23)  (Wiatosa)  (Biateew)  (WE2s(c)
At 1 December 2021 RZB=—4%+=fA-H 2,067 28,732 4,952 (340) (19,626) 15,785
Loss for the year FRBE - - - - (6,736) (6,736)
Other comprehensive income At 2E ke (FX):
(expenses):
Item that will not be reclassified o~ BT EEH S HEZEREA
profit or loss
Exchange difference on translation ~ BEARAHBERE
of the Company's financial 2B ZERER
statements to presentation
currency - - - 1,056 - 1,056
ltem that may be reclassified ERRET R R
subsequently to profit or loss P
Exchange difference on translation of ~ AEENIBAT
foreign subsidiaries LEREZR - - - (814) - (814)
Total comprehensive income FEZEANE(BR)
(expenses) for the year - - - 242 (6,736) (6,494)
At 30 November 2022 W-E--f+-A=+1A 2,067 28,732 4,952 (98) (26,362) 9,291
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GEREMNER

Year ended 30 November 2022 HE—-Z— —

Ft+—A=tTHILFE

2021
—T-_—F
RM’000 RM’'000
BT ST
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BESES
Loss before income tax FRETISHIRTE R (6,592) (6,219)
Adjustments for: B TFIEE (EETHEE -
Amortisation i 4,282 2,782
Depreciation e 838 810
Reversal of impairment losses on trade B 5 EWGRIR 2R IE
receivables &85 [l (926) =
Exchange difference PERER 242 (22)
Interest income A EIA (42) (190)
Interest expenses FEFAX 98 72
Cash flows used in operations before REESBEAI 2EE
movements in working capital FTAZRERE (2,100) (2,767)
Change in working capital: KEESEE -
Trade and other receivables B 5 Rk H M EUFRIE 7,411 (2,105)
Contract assets and liabilities AHBEKRAME (821) (1,437)
Restricted bank balances PR I ER1T A AR (183) (157)
Trade and other payables B 5 K E A N IR (8,757) 5,831
Cash used in operations EEfMAZES (4,450) (635)
Income tax paid ERFEH (226) (77)
Net cash used in operating REEHFA
activities ZEEFHE (4,676) (712)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BRETEH
Purchases of property, plant and BEME
equipment B8 KRB (186) (116)
Additions to intangible assets NEEVEE (3,267) (2,865)
Interest received SIS 42 190

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GEREMNER

Year ended 30 November 2022 HE - - —F+—A=+HILFE

2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F

Notes RM’000 RM’'000
izt BT T ST
Net cash used in investing activities REZBFFAZREEE (3,411) (2,791)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES AEEE
Repayment of interest-bearing BEFEEE
borrowings 26(b) (24) —
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHREAE 26(b) (236) (212)
Interest paid EARFE (98) (72)
Net cash used in financing activities BMEFHAAZREFE (358) (284)
Net decrease in cash and RERREEEY
cash equivalents DR (8,445) (3,787)
Cash and cash equivalents at WEHI2RER
the beginning of the reporting period REZEY 15,089 18,876
Cash and cash equivalents at the end HEHMRZREERRESE
of the reporting period, represented BY » URITHEHRR
by bank balances and cash HE275 6,644 15,089
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CORPORATE INFORMATION AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION

Mindtell Technology Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
as an exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman
Islands on 27 February 2018. The Company’s shares were
listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) on 22 October 2018. The address of the
Company’s registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands
and its principal place of business in Hong Kong is Unit 1802,
18/F, Ruttonjee House, Ruttonjee Centre, 11 Duddell Street,
Central, Hong Kong. The Group’s headquarter is situated at
B-7-7, Sky Park @ One City, Jalan USJ 25/1, 47650 Subang
Jaya, Selangor, Malaysia.

The principal activity of the Company is an investment holding
company. The Company together with its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) are principally engaged in the provision of system
integration and development services, IT outsourcing services
and maintenance and consultancy services.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (the “IASB”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual IFRSs, International Accounting Standards (“IASs”)
and Interpretations issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM
Listing Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Malaysian
Ringgit (“RM”) and all amounts have been rounded to the nearest
thousand (“RM’000”), unless otherwise indicated.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the basis consistent with accounting policies adopted in 2021
consolidated financial statements except for the adoption of the
new/revised IFRSs that are relevant to the Group and effective
from the current year.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR MR

Year ended 30 November 2022 H#E - - —F+—A=1+HILFE

RAERRRREE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B IR R M

Year ended 30 November 2022 H#E—ZE - —F+— A=1+HILFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Adoption of new/revised IFRSs

The Group has applied, for the first time, the following new/
revised IFRSs:

Amendments to IAS 39, IFRSs 4, 7, 9 and 16: Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

The amendments address issues that might affect financial
reporting when a company replaces the old interest rate
benchmark with an alternative benchmark rate as a result of the
interest rate benchmark reform (the “Reform”). The amendments

complement those issued in September 2019 and relate to:

o changes to contractual cash flows—a company will not
have to derecognise or adjust the carrying amount of
financial instruments for changes required by the Reform,
but will instead update the effective interest rate to reflect

the change to the alternative benchmark rate;

o hedge accounting—a company will not have to discontinue
its hedge accounting solely because it makes changes
required by the Reform, if the hedge meets other hedge

accounting criteria; and

o disclosures—a company will be required to disclose
information about new risks arising from the reform and
how it manages the transition to alternative benchmark

rates.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant

impact on the consolidated financial statements.

2.

TEREHBER)
RANFETRASET B R A 1 8 i 2 B

AEBERERA T EETBR A
B EER :

EIRRE 5B 39%; - EIRFAI % # &R
%47 9K REI6H 25T - FIFEEE
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ZEERTARR T 2 B B A = B ([ 21
B ) A AR B E R R B AR
AREHYBREERTENHEE - ZFE
AHE_T-NFNAARMGRETIELME
7 WEATEEGH :

e AHRENMEWETH - RFAHAM
HERTENED R ILERNARSD
BMTAMNKREE  HEAHERFE
1E H 3T A R BR B (R R K B
&) ;

e  HUREFEE - MEIRFE AMmY
HERE  BARRENESA
B 478 {2 [ K 1 H B3 P AR JE 1Y 2
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. BRE-ATARBLEBMREBFEL
B2 LB % EL B AR B R
BB E AR
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Change in accounting estimates

The estimated useful lives of intangible assets are affected by
the continuing evolution of technology and the appearance of a
large number of new technologies and services. During the year,
the Group reviewed the current condition of existing intangible
assets and assessed the impact of the continuous technology
development and determined to revise the estimated useful
lives of certain intangible assets from 3 years to 1.5 years. The
change in accounting estimate is accounted for prospectively
from 1 January 2022. Effect of change in useful lives is estimated
to have increased amortisation by approximately RM612,000

for the current year.

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted by the

Group is set out below.
Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements is historical cost.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as that of the Company using consistent

accounting policies.

All intra-group balances, transactions, incomes and expenses
and profits and losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control and continue

to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented, separately from owners
of the Company, in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income and within equity in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the acquiree’s
net assets in event of liquidation, are measured initially either at
fair value or at the present ownership instruments’ proportionate
share in the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. This choice of measurement basis is made on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Other types of non-controlling
interests are initially measured at fair value, unless another

measurement basis is required by IFRSs.
Allocation of total comprehensive income

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income is
attributed to the owners of the Company and the non-controlling
interest even if this results in the non-controlling interest having

a deficit balance.
Changes in ownership interest

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2022 H#E—ZE - —F+— A=1+HILFE

TEREHBER)
REREH)

FERERNGABEEEMEE KSR
NEXRBEEADHZS - XRESY
BRAER N 25 - REEIETT 23k
TS (RRERAERES Y TR
BABNAIRBRRRL OIS EREET
BEFE)INTRATFERIRRERES
BXBERBBE BN EEFEZD
HRLEE - MEFEEESHENF
WIEEEME - RIFERPBREEAR
ERAA—HFEEE  [RIEMERZ
FFERERN T RN TEFE -

7 B2 E W 2

BakHEMEE R RS AR TR BN
ARRGEA AR ER - 2EE RS
SBRARREA AR EEREE - B
Flt R e EFIFE RS N R BA AR

REREZEE

AEER—FHNBARZEEERESES
fif A MG R KT HHE - RIEREER S
AR o R IR RS 2 REES
TEH AT - ARBRE A% T8 1 B 4E R
w2 B8 o FFERER B EREEK
THE MENKERREZAFEER
RIESHERL FERANARHEEA -

2022 ANNUAL REPORT 53k

79



80

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)
Changes in ownership interest (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss
on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest determined at the date
when control is lost and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests at the date when control is lost. The
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to the disposed subsidiary are accounted for on the
same basis as would be required if the parent had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Any investment
retained in the former subsidiary and any amounts owed by or
to the former subsidiary are accounted for as a financial asset,
associate, joint venture or others as appropriate from the date

when control is lost.
Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
The Group reassesses whether it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or

more of the elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position as set out in
Note 24 to the consolidated financial statements, investment in
a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment loss, if any. The
carrying amount of the investment is reduced to its recoverable
amount on an individual basis, if it is higher than the recoverable
amount. The results of the subsidiary are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and/or receivable.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use. Repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss
during the period in which they are incurred.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less accumulated
impairment losses of property, plant and equipment over their
estimated useful lives as set out below from the date on which
they are available for use and after taking into account their
estimated residual values, using the straight-line method. Where
parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable

basis and depreciated separately:

Buildings 50 years
Leasehold improvements 10 years
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 10 years
Computer equipment 2.5 - 3 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the item) is included in profit or loss in the period in which

the item is derecognised.
Intangible assets
Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Costs incurred
on development activities, which involve the application
of research findings to a plan or design for the production
of new or substantially improved products and processes,
are capitalised if the product or process is technically and
commercially feasible and the Group has sufficient resources to
complete the development. The expenditure capitalised includes
the cost of materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion
of overheads. Other development expenditure is recognised
in profit or loss as an expense as incurred. When the asset
is available for use, the capitalised development costs are
amortised on a straight-line basis over a period of 1.5 years.
For intangible assets yet to be available for use, they are stated

at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets are recognised when and only when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments

and on a trade date basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i) the
Group’s contractual rights to future cash flows from the financial
asset expire or (ii) the Group transfers the financial asset and
either (a) it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset, or (b) it neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the

financial asset but it does not retain control of the financial asset.

Classification and measurement

Financial assets (except for trade receivables without a significant
financing component) are initially recognised at their fair value
plus, in the case of financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVPL"), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets. Such trade

receivables are initially measured at their transaction price.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as (i)
measured at amortised cost; (ii) debt investment measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income; (iii) equity
investment measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income; or (iv) measured at FVPL.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics.
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial
recognition unless the Group changes its business model for
managing them, in which case all affected financial assets are
reclassified on the first day of the first annual reporting period

following the change in the business model.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e

B 5 AR MY EE

Year ended 30 November 2022 HEZ —ZE - —F+—A=F+HILFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and measurement (continued)

(M

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets
both of the following conditions and is not designated
as at FVPL:

(i it is held within a business model whose objective is
to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual

cash flows; and

(if)  its contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses arising from
impairment, derecognition or through the amortisation

process are recognised in profit or loss.

The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost include
trade and other receivables, restricted bank balances

and bank balances and cash.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities

Recognition and derecognition

Financial liabilities are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instruments.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when the
liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified

in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.
Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value
plus, in the case of financial liabilities not carried at FVPL,
transaction costs that are direct attributable to the issue of the

financial liabilities.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, interest-bearing borrowings and lease liabilities. All
financial liabilities are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method, unless the effect of discounting would be
insignificant, in which case they are stated at cost.

Impairment of financial assets and other items under IFRS
9

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses
(“ECL”) on financial assets that are measured at amortised cost
and contract assets to which the impairment requirements apply
in accordance with IFRS 9. Except for the specific treatments
as detailed below, at each reporting date, the Group measures
a loss allowance for a financial asset at an amount equal to
the lifetime ECL if the credit risk on that financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk
on a financial asset has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for that

financial asset at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under IFRS

9 (continued)
Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e. the
present value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected life of

the financial instrument.

For financial assets, a credit loss is the present value of the
difference between the contractual cash flows that are due to
an entity under the contract and the cash flows that the entity

expects to receive.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument
while 12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events on a financial instrument

that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped based on the following one or more

shared credit risk characteristics:

(i) past due information

(ii)  nature of instrument

(iii)  nature of collateral

(iv) industry of debtors

(v)  geographical location of debtors
(vi) external credit risk ratings

Loss allowance is remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk and loss since
initial recognition. The resulting changes in the loss allowance
are recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss
with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the

financial instrument.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under IFRS

9 (continued)
Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that the Group may not receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full if the financial

instrument that meets any of the following criteria.

(i information developed internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into

account any collaterals held by the Group); or
(i)  thereisabreach of financial covenants by the counterparty.

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90
days past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion
is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2022 H#E—ZE - —F+— A=1+HILFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. EFEEHHE@)
Financial instruments (continued) SWMIAE)
Impairment of financial assets and other items under IFRS WRIZEIRE R iR 2 ERI B it B2 B
9 (continued) BEREREMBEEL (&)
Assessment of significant increase in credit risk 1= BB R Z 5 0,2 i

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or effort.
In particular, the following information is taken into account in

the assessment:

o the debtor’s failure to make payments of principal or

interest on the due dates;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating (if
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available); VI
. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the . BERAREEELRERKTER
operating results of the debtor; and BEARER Rk

o actual or expected changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have or may have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to meet
its obligation to the Group.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, except for the
receivables for which the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that previous non-payments were
an administrative oversight, instead of resulting from financial
difficulty of the borrower, or that there is no correlation between
significant increases in the risk of a default occurring and
financial assets on which payments are more than 30 days

past due.
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e B ER R M

Year ended 30 November 2022 HE —&T ——

F+—RA=THIFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under IFRS

9 (continued)
Low credit risk

A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:

(i) it has a low risk of default;

(if)  the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term; and

(iiiy  adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations.

Other receivables, restricted bank balances and bank balances

and cash are determined to have low credit risk.
Simplified approach of ECL

For trade receivables and contract assets, without a significant
financing component or otherwise for which the Group applies
the practical expedient not to account for the significant
financing components, the Group applies a simplified approach
in calculating ECL. The Group recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date and has established
a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the

debtors and the economic environment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2022 H#E—ZE - —F+— A=1+HILFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. XE®TEE®)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under IFRS

9 (continued)
Credit-impaired financial asset

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired include observable data about

the following events:
(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower.
(b) abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event.

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the

lender(s) would not otherwise consider.

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial

asset because of financial difficulties.

(f) the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a deep

discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.
Write-off

The Group writes off a financial asset when the Group has no
reasonable expectations of recovering the contractual cash flows
on a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The Group
has a policy of writing off the gross carrying amount based on
historical experience of recoveries of similar assets. The Group
expects no significant recovery from the amount written off.
However, financial assets that are written off could still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s procedures
for recovery of amounts due, taking into account legal advice
if appropriate. Any subsequent recovery is recognised in profit

or loss.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash equivalents represent short-term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and

which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers within IFRS 15

Nature of goods or services

The nature of the goods or services provided by the Group is

as follows:

(i) system integration and development services
(ify  IT outsourcing services

(iii)  maintenance and consultancy services
Identification of performance obligations

At contract inception, the Group assesses the goods or services
promised in a contract with a customer and identifies as a
performance obligation each promise to transfer to the customer

either:

(a) a good or service (or a bundle of goods or services) that

is distinct; or

(b) aseries of distinct goods or services that are substantially
the same and that have the same pattern of transfer to

the customer.

A good or service that is promised to a customer is distinct if

both of the following criteria are met:

(a) the customer can benefit from the good or service either
on its own or together with other resources that are readily
available to the customer (i.e. the good or service is

capable of being distinct); and

(b) the Group’s promise to transfer the good or service to the
customer is separately identifiable from other promises
in the contract (i.e. the promise to transfer the good or

service is distinct within the context of the contract).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2022 H#E—ZE - —F+— A=1+HILFE

TR

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. FESBE®E)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within IFRS 15

(continued)
Timing of revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when (or as) the Group satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring a promised good or
service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred

when (or as) the customer obtains control of that asset.

The Group transfers control of a good or service over time and,
therefore, satisfies a performance obligation and recognises

revenue over time, if one of the following criteria is met:

(a) the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the

Group performs;

(b) the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
(for example, work in progress) that the customer controls

as the asset is created or enhanced; or

(c) the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed

to date.

If a performance obligation is not satisfied over time, the Group
satisfies the performance obligation at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the promised asset. In determining
when the transfer of control occurs, the Group considers the
concept of control and such indicators as legal title, physical
possession, right to payment, significant risks and rewards of

ownership of the asset, and customer acceptance.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within IFRS 15

(continued)
Timing of revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from system integration and development services
and consultancy services is recognised over time because
the Group’s performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable

right to payment for performance completed to date.

Sales of externally acquired/purchased hardware and software
for system integration and development services is recognised
at a point in time at which the customer obtains the control of the
promised asset, which generally coincides with the time when
the goods are delivered to customers and the title is passed.

IT outsourcing services income is recognised over time when

services are rendered.

Maintenance services income is recognised over time on a

straight-line basis over the life of the related agreements.

For revenue recognised over time under IFRS 15, provided
the outcome of the performance obligation can be reasonably
measured, the Group applies the input method (i.e. based on the
proportion of the actual inputs deployed to date as compared
to the estimated total inputs) to measure the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance obligation because
there is a direct relationship between the Group’s inputs and
the transfer of control of goods or services to the customers
and reliable information is available to the Group to apply the
method. Otherwise, revenue is recognised only to the extent of
the costs incurred until such time that it can reasonably measure

the outcome of the performance obligation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2022 H#E—ZE - —F+— A=1+HILFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. XE®TEE®)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within IFRS 15

(continued)
Transaction price: significant financing components

When the contract contains a significant financing component
(i.e. the customer or the Group is provided with a significant
benefit of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer), in determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts
the promised consideration for the effects of the time value of
money. The effect of the significant financing component is
recognised as an interest income or interest expense separately

from revenue from contracts with customers in profit or loss.

The Group determines the interest rate that is commensurate
with the rate that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction between the Group and its customer at contract
inception by reference to, where appropriate, the interest rate
implicit in the contract (i.e. the interest rate that discounts the
cash selling price of the goods or services to the amount paid
in advance or arrears), the prevailing market interest rates, the
Group’s borrowing rates and other relevant creditworthiness

information of the customer of the Group.

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph 63
of IFRS 15 and does not adjust the consideration for the effect
of the significant financing component if the period of financing

is one year or less.
Interest income

Interest income from financial assets is recognised using the
effective interest method. For financial assets measured at
amortised cost that are not credit-impaired, the effective interest
rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the assets while
it is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount
net of loss allowance) in case of credit- impaired financial assets.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Contract assets and contract liabilities

If the Group performs by transferring goods or services to a
customer before the customer pays consideration or before
payment is due, the contract is presented as a contract asset,
excluding any amounts presented as a receivable. Conversely,
if a customer pays consideration, or the Group has a right to an
amount of consideration that is unconditional, before the Group
transfers a good or service to the customer, the contract is
presented as a contract liability when the payment is made or the
payment is due (whichever is earlier). A receivable is the Group’s
right to consideration that is unconditional or only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration is due.

For a single contract or a single set of related contracts, either
a net contract asset or a net contract liability is presented.
Contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts
are not presented on a net basis.

In accordance with the standard payment schedules of the
Group, payments are normally not due or received from the
customer until the services are completed or when the goods are
delivered. However, for such transactions, revenue is recognised
over time and therefore, a contract asset is recognised until
it becomes a receivable or payments are received. In some
situation, the Group received from the customer the whole
or some of the contractual payments before the services are
completed or when the goods are delivered (i.e. the timing
of revenue recognition for such transactions). The Group
recognises a contract liability until it is recognised as revenue.
During that period, any significant financing components, if
applicable, will be included in the contract asset and recognised
as interest income, or included in the contract liability and will
be expensed as accrued unless the interest expense is eligible

for capitalisation.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency translation

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in RM because the Group’s transactions are
mainly conducted in RM, which is the functional currency of the
operating subsidiaries of the Group in Malaysia. The Company’s
functional currency is Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”).

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
at period-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit or
loss.

The results and financial position of all the group entities that have
a functional currency different from the presentation currency (*
foreign operations”) are translated into the presentation currency

as follows:

o assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented, are translated at the closing rate at

the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR MR

Year ended 30 November 2022 HE—ZE - —F+—A=FTHILFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency translation (continued)

income and expenses for each statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income are translated at

average exchange rate.

all resulting exchange differences arising from the
above translation and exchange differences arising
from a monetary item that forms part of the Group’s net
investment in a foreign operation are recognised as a

separate component of equity.

on the disposal of a foreign operation, which includes
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation and a disposal involving the loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
cumulative amount of the exchange differences relating
to the foreign operation that is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the separate
component of equity is reclassified from equity to profit

or loss when the gain or loss on disposal is recognised.

on the partial disposal of the Group’s interest in a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation which does
not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences recognised in the separate
component of equity is re-attributed to the non-controlling
interests in that foreign operation and are not reclassified
to profit or loss; and

on all other partial disposals, the proportionate share of the
cumulative amount of exchange differences recognised in
the separate component of equity is reclassified to profit

or loss.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

FESHBE#E)
SRS (F)

FERREMDE MR KET
BTHERRE -

P b EEE ZE N ZRME
A ERB R BN T 2 B F A
DZEWEBMELEZELZE
TyER R Z ERIE D

HEBIEER(EREEAREE
REBINEHZ 2B H#EE - AR R
REBSBINEBZMBAR ZIE
gz HEER) - BB KA
i 70 EL i 2 T W et AP R SR 30 0 e
TEUHN R CELEZRRGE
B ONERLEESRAEREN

K =<
DIBEIEE

BOLEXAEBERBEBIERLZ
MBARz#ER  BYESAEE
REHHBAR 2 EGIER - R
B D16 MM 25 T B S B0 0 TR [
REBRRGFEEENHIEERS
SNER Z JEIEI S MR EH

DEEEE R

RETBEME D h &R - LD
EREET BB R ZIELE
BMAATEGEFOEEES o



PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of other assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews internal
and external sources of information to assess whether there is
any indication that its property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets, intangible assets and the Company’s investment
in a subsidiary may be impaired or impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may be reduced. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated, based on the higher of its fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In addition, the Group tests
its intangible assets that are yet to be available for use for
impairment by estimating their recoverable amount on an annual
basis or whenever there is an indication that those assets may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of intangible assets not yet available for use is estimated, based
on the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the smallest group of assets that generates cash flows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit (“CGU")).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss immediately.

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the carrying amount
of the asset or cash-generating unit that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
periods. Reversal of impairment loss is recognised as an income
in profit or loss immediately.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income on the
temporary investment of the specific borrowings, that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, i.e. assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Capitalisation of
such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs
are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant
relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income over the
years necessary to match the grant on a systematic basis to
the costs that it is intended to compensate. Where the grant
relates to an asset, the fair value is recognised as a deduction
from the carrying amount of the relevant asset and is released
to profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant

asset by equal annual instalments.
Leases

The Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease
at inception of the contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified

asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
As lessee

The Group applies the recognition exemption to short-term
leases and low-value asset leases. Lease payments associated
with these leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

The Group has elected not to separate non-lease components
from lease components, and accounts for each lease component
and any associated non-lease components as a single lease

component.

The Group accounts for each lease component within a lease
contract as a lease separately. The Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the

basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component.

Amounts payable by the Group that do not give rise to a separate
component are considered to be part of the total consideration
that is allocated to the separately identified components of the

contract.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability

at the commencement date of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2022 HE—ZT - —F+—A=F+HILFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. FEETHE#®E)
Leases (continued) HE#E)
As lessee (continued) 1EBREN ()

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which

comprises:
(a) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

(b) anyleases payments made at or before the commencement

date, less any lease incentives received;

(c) any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

(d) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying asset, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions
of the lease, unless those costs are incurred to produce

inventories.

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost less
any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability.
Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the right-of-use
asset (unless the lease transfers ownership of the underlying
asset to the Group by the end of the lease term or if the cost
of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Group will exercise a
purchase option — in which case depreciation is provided over

the estimated useful life of the underlying asset) as follows:
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The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement

date of the contract.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)
As lessee (continued)

The lease payments included in the measurement of the lease
liability comprise the following payments for the right to use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid at the

commencement date:

(a) fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),

less any lease incentives receivable;

(b) variable lease payments that depend on an index or a

rate;

(c) amounts expected to be payable under residual value
guarantees;

(d) exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is

reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

(e) payment of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate
the lease.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, or where it is not readily determinable, the

incremental borrowing rate of the lessee.

Subsequently, the lease liability is measured by increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability and by
reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments

made.

The lease liability is remeasured using a revised discount rate
when there are changes to the lease payments arising from a
change in the lease term or the reassessment of whether the

Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)
As lessee (continued)

The lease liability is remeasured by using the original discount
rate when there is a change in the residual value guarantee, the
in-substance fixed lease payments or the future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or a rate (other than floating
interest rate). In case of a change in future lease payments
resulting from a change in floating interest rates, the Group

remeasures the lease liability using a revised discount rate.

The Group recognises the amount of the remeasurement of
the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
If the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to
zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the
lease liability, the Group recognises any remaining amount of

the remeasurement in profit or loss.

A lease modification is accounted for as a separate lease if:

(a) the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;

and

(b) the consideration for the lease increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that standalone price to reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR MR

Year ended 30 November 2022 HE—ZE - —F+—A=FTHILFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

As lessee (continued)

When a lease modification is not accounted for as a separate

lease, at the effective date of the lease modification:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

the Group allocates the consideration in the modified
contract on the basis of relative standalone price as

described above.

the Group determines the lease term of the modified

contract.

the Group remeasures the lease liability by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate
over the revised lease term.

for lease modifications that decrease the scope of the
lease, the Group accounts for the remeasurement of the
lease liability by decreasing the carrying amount of the
right-of-use assets to reflect the partial or full termination
of the lease and recognising any gain or loss relating to

the partial or full termination of the lease in profit or loss.

for all other lease modifications, the Group accounts
for the remeasurement of the lease liability by making a

corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2022 HE—ZT - —F+—A=F+HILFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. FEETHE#®E)
Leases (continued) HE#E)
As lessee (continued) 1EBREN ()

The Group has applied the practical expedient provided in
Amendments to IFRS 16: COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021 and does not assess whether eligible rent
concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic are lease modification. The Group accounts for any
change in lease payments resulting from the rent concession
the same way it would account for the change applying IFRS

16 if the change were not a lease modification.

The practical expedient applies only to rent concessions
occurring as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic

and only if all of the following conditions are met:

(a) the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the same
as, or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately

preceding the change;

(b) any reduction in lease payments affects only payments

originally due on or before 30 June 2022; and

(c) there is no substantive change to other terms and

conditions of the lease.

The Group has applied the practical expedient consistently to
all eligible rent concessions with similar characteristics and in

similar circumstances.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the period in which the

associated services are rendered by employees.
Defined contribution plans

The obligations for contributions to defined contribution
retirement scheme are recognised as an expense in profit or
loss as incurred. The assets of the scheme are held separately

from those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the results
for the period as adjusted for items that are non-assessable
or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements. However, any deferred
tax arising from initial recognition of goodwill, or other asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither the accounting profit

nor taxable profit or loss is not recognised.

The deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is recovered or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and
tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at

the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, tax losses and

credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investment in subsidiaries, except where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference will net reverse

in the foreseeable future.
Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group,

that is defined as:

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is

related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of the holding company of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR MR

Year ended 30 November 2022 HE—ZE - —F+—A=FTHILFE

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)

(if)

(iif)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each holding company,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the

others).

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member

of a group of which the other entity is a member).

both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a
plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to

the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a holding company of

the entity).

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services

to the Group or to the holding company of the Group.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced

by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:
(a) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or

domestic partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes
subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture includes

subsidiaries of the joint venture.
Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the purpose of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s

various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individual material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority

of these criteria.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and
judgements are made by the management in the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements. They affect the application
of the Group’s accounting policies, reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses, and disclosures made. They
are assessed on an on-going basis and are based on experience
and relevant factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Where
appropriate, revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period of revision and future periods, in case the revision

also affects future periods.
Key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follow:

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and intangible assets

The management determines the estimated useful lives of the
Group’s property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets based on the experience of actual useful lives
of assets of similar nature and functions or expected useful lives
of assets, after taking into account of estimated technology life
cycle. The estimated useful lives could be different as a result of
technical innovations which could affect the related depreciation

and amortisation charges included in profit or loss.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and intangible assets

The management determines whether the Group’s property,
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets
are impaired when an indication of impairment exists or when
annual impairment testing is required. This requires an estimation
of the recoverable amount of the property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets, which is equal to the
higher of fair value less costs of disposal or the value in use.
Estimating the value in use requires the management to make
an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the property,
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets
and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows. Any impairment will be

charged to profit or loss.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)
Discount rates for calculating lease liabilities — as lessee

The Group uses the lessee’s incremental borrowing rates to
discount future lease payments since interest rates implicit
in the leases are not readily determinable. In determining the
discounts rates for its leases, the Group refers to a rate that
is readily observable as the starting point and then applies
judgement and adjusts such observable rate to determine the

incremental borrowing rate.
Loss allowance for ECL

The Group’s management estimates the loss allowance for trade
receivables and contract assets by using various inputs and
assumptions including risk of a default and expected loss rate.
The estimation involves high degree of uncertainty which is
based on the Group’s historical information, existing market
conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at the end of
each reporting period. Where the expectation is different from
the original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
amount of trade receivables and contract assets. Details of the
key assumption and inputs used in estimating ECL are set out

in Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.
Revenue recognition

The Group recognised revenue from system integration and
development services and consultancy services over time
by reference to the progress of satisfaction of performance
obligations of each project at the reporting date. The progress is
determined based on actual inputs, such as staff costs, deployed
on each project and the respective input costs comparing to the
estimated total service costs of each project by tracing to the
contracts signed with respective customers. The computation
of the progress and estimation of total service costs for each

project require the use of judgement and estimates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B ER R M

Year ended 30 November 2022 HE—ZE - —F+—A=FTHILFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Future changes in IFRSs

At the date of approving these consolidated financial statements,
the IASB has issued the following new/revised IFRSs that are
not yet effective for the current year, which the Group has not
early adopted.

Amendments to IAS 16 Proceeds before Intended
Use !

Amendments to I1AS 37 Cost of Fulfilling a Contract '

Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting
Policies 2

Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates 2

Amendments to I1AS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets

and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction 2
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 2
Amendment to IFRS 17 Initial Application of IFRS 17
and IFRS 9 - Comparative
Information 2

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current 2

Amendments to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants ®

Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback ®

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets

between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture *

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024
4 The effective date to be determined

The Directors do not anticipate that the adoption of these new/
revised IFRSs in future periods will have any material impact

on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the executive directors of the Company,
being identified as the chief operating decision makers (the
“CODM"), for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment
of segment performance focuses on types of goods delivered
or services provided. No operating segments identified by the
CODM have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable

segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments are:

(i) system integration and development services;
(if)  IT outsourcing services; and

(iii)  maintenance and consultancy services.
Segment revenue and results

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note 2 to the

consolidated financial statements.

Segment revenue represents revenue derived from the system
integration and development services, IT outsourcing services

and maintenance and consultancy services.

Segment results represent the gross profit reported by each
segment without allocation of other income, administrative
expenses, finance costs, impairment loss on intangible assets
and trade receivables and income tax expenses. This is the
measure reported to the CODM of the Group for the purposes

of resource allocation and performance assessment.

No analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by operating
segments is presented as it is not regularly provided to the
CODM for review.

In addition, the Group’s place of domicile is Malaysia, where

the central management and control is located.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2022 H#E—ZE - —F+— A=1+HILFE

2 EER

MARBRTER(ARINREIRLE
REE(EBEERRE 2R ZER -
HRERSERFEOBRRME - &
EXNHRHE Y RBREZRE - RE
BMASEAZHD M - TEESETERE
BERREBRN 2 EEDE -

%

AREMNE  AEEZAU2HEREED

(i) EHREENMEERS
(i) BRI IR &
(iii)  #EERERRE
Dk ERFEE

RED WM A RRELZEMBRRME2
Ptz AR B2 S RTIR— 2K e

DEM IR R B R E S RAERY - &
AR SN HIBR TS A Ko (& B R AR 75 BR A5
ZYzs e

DEREBEEEDHE2|MEMN - MALRD
oz B ~ ITHRFX - BEKRA ~ &
WEEKE S REFIBRERBIE RSN
X - RERSERKRBEFETS @ b7
MAEEzTRLERREZRLTE °

HRAREREENHBEND 2EERBE
TEEHRERATEIZLERRELTE
3 B EEHRE DN °

Ubsh - NEE 2 FER RS KT - Bl
REERIEG 2 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR MR

Year ended 30 November 2022 HEZE—ZE - —F+—A=F+HILFE

3. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 3. ZEERE)
Segment revenue and results (continued) DEBU IR R A& (E)
The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable REZ-_ZT—— —E-—F+—A=
segments for the years ended 30 November 2022 and 2021 is +HIEFE A2 HHBREZLER
as follows: RERBZDBERDT

System
integration Maintenance
and IT and

development outsourcing consultancy
services services services
G HHRE RRE

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM000
V-1 S V-1 S FETr FETr
Year ended 30 November 2022 BE-E-—Ft+-A=tHLEE
Revenue from external customers and REMPEE 2 W kA 2HH Bl
reportable segment revenue 10,171 1,249 1,047 12,467
Reportable segment results 2R PEE 1,853 566 960 3,379
Other information: BMEH -
Amortisation Bim 4,282 - - 4,282
Addition of intangible assets NEENAE 3,267 - - 3,267
Year ended 30 November 2021 HE-ZS-_-F+-A=THLEE
Revenue from external customers and REMPEF 2 Wz KA 28D Pl
reportable segment revenue 13,518 2,866 793 17,177
Reportable segment results AZRAPEE 972 1,156 577 2,705
Other information: RfEH -
Amortisation & 2,782 = = 2,782
Addition of intangible assets NEEWEE 2,865 = = 2,865
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Year ended 30 November 2022 HEZ —ZE - —F+—A=F+HILFE

3. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical information

The following table sets out information about the geographical
location of (i) the Group’s revenue from external customers;
and (ii) the Group’s property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets and intangible assets (the “Specified Non-current
Assets”). The geographical location of revenue is based on the
location of external customers. The geographical location of the
Specified Non-current Assets is based on the physical location
of the assets (in the case of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets, the location of operation to which they
are located, in the case of intangible assets, the location of

operations).

(a) Revenue from external customers

AEWER ()
HEEH

TREIBEBOAKERBIBES Z
Wat: RONDANEBZWE  #EER
W ERAREENREREE(IFEHE
RBEE N2 HBUEZER - WEZ
WM ETRBINEEL ZMLEME °
REFRDEEZHWBULENREEE
CERVE(NEBYE  #BIRREMN
NMERBEEE  WEMREEIMNE
MEENEE  AREEZMNE)ME

(a) KEINBEFZ WKz

2022 2021
== F T —F

RM’000 RM’000

B¥TFr BT

Indonesia e - 158
Malaysia BRFLE 12,467 17,004
Singapore AN - 15
12,467 17, 17

(b) Specified Non-current Assets

At 30 November 2022 and 2021, all the Specified Non-
current Assets are located in Malaysia.

(b) BEHFREBEE

RZBE-_—_FR-_ZT-_—F+—A
=+8 - FEREFRRBEEMR
Bk o
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Year ended 30 November 2022 HE —&T ——

Frt—HA=1THILFE

3. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 3.

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers individually contributing 10% or

more of the total revenue of the Group for the years ended 30

November 2022 and 2021 is as follows:

Customer A
Customer B

Customer C

Customer D

EEA
=FB

EFC

EFD

2 EE R (4)
TRETERFZEHN

REENEMAEEHEZE TS _—F K=
T _—F+—A=ZTHLEFEZHERKS
10% A L2 BFE 2 ET ¢

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F

RM’000 RM’000
BT BT
(Note)
7,756 (Bzt)
- 6,000
(Note)
(HtaE) 4,834
(Note)
(Htzt) 2,929

Note: The customer individually did not contrib

ute 10% or more of the

total revenue of the Group for the relevant year.

M - ZBZFPRABFELEENERMAEE
U E10%3A | e

4. REVENUE 4, WHE
2022 2021
—E-= —E_—F
RM’000 RM’000
E%TFr EEFT
Revenue from contracts with customers I3 B B 75 R A5 2 R B 1 B8R TR
within IFRS 15 ZEP AN
System integration and B RFAERS
development services:
Services provided FriR (AR 75 7,764 9,627
Sales of externally acquired/ HEINPURE BB 2B
purchased hardware and software PGS 2,407 3,891
10,171 13,518
IT outsourcing services B NBHEZ SN AR 75 1,249 2,866
Maintenance and consultancy services #E1E & B AR TS 1,047 793
12,467 17,177
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Year ended 30 November 2022 &

2-EF

Frt—HA=1THILFE

4. REVENUE (continued) &EAE D)
2022 2021
—E2-— —E_—4F
RM’000 RM’000
BT BT or
Timing of revenue recognition: Woas R 2 BRI IE -
At a point in time R 2,407 3,891
Over time BB R R 10,060 13,286
12,467 17,177
5. OTHER INCOME Hslr A
2022 2021
o S - —E_—F
RM’000 RM’000
BE¥Fr B¥For
Government grant B A #6d By 54 58
Interest income FLEWA 42 190
Others Efh 5 7
101 252
6. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX MRETEBATE R
This is stated after charging: FRPTISEL R BB HIR NS IEAE ¢
2022 2021
—E-—fF —55 T
RM’000 RM’000
F¥Fr BT
Finance costs A& A A
Interest expenses on interest-bearing ATEEEZAEFAX
borrowings 42 20
Finance charges on lease liabilities HEBBE MEER 56 52
98 72
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Year ended 30 November 2022 HEZE—ZE - —F+—A=F+HILFE

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX (continued) 6. BRFASHATEE®)
2022 2021
—E2-— —E_—4F
RM’000 RM’000
BE%Fr Vi e
Staff costs and related expenses BIRARERERX
(including directors’ remuneration) (BRESHM)
Salaries, allowances and e EKR
other benefits in kind Hib B Was 8,354 7,118
Contributions to defined contribution plans  E#Et T8I~ =% 703 629
9,057 7,747
Represented by: (A
Staff costs for administrative and sales staff 7 M #HE 8 T 2 8 TR 2,640 1,851
Staff costs for IT staff included in BB E THE TAA -
administrative expenses FFATTHAX 1,205 1,868
Staff costs allocated to “Cost of services”  BAEZEIRBEKAR 2 8 T 4,405 3,863
Staff costs charged to profit or loss FrABZRZ B TR 8,250 7,582
Staff costs capitalised as BERNLAIEREAE]
“Intangible assets” Z BIRAR 807 165
9,057 7,747
Other items HihEH
Amortisation of intangible assets, ERAERH
included in administrative expenses (GFATTHRIS) 4,282 2,782
Auditors’ remuneration % Gl 518 459
Cost of materials sold BEMREAR 2,165 3,467
Depreciation of property, plant and Yz - IS RERIEITE
equipment 457 450
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 381 360
Exchange loss, net HNIE B3 18 55 35 1
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Year ended 30 November 2022 HEZ —ZE - —F+—A=F+HILFE

7. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 7. EEME
In addition to the directors’ fee, certain directors of the Company BRESEWEIN ARRZETEETREZE
received remuneration from the Group during the years ended 30 B FR-FE-—F+—A=1+HIt
November 2022 and 2021 for their appointment as employees of FERNEBASBWEE B - MEAKSE
these entities. The aggregate amounts of remuneration received BEERUEEREE ZHFH - REZEZ
and receivable by the directors of the Company during the years T —E—F+—A=THILF
ended 30 November 2022 and 2021 are set out below. EA - ARFEZEZE W REWH N2 25
BEEINAT o
Year ended 30 November 2022 BE-ZE-—_H+—-A=+HLFE

Salaries,
allowances Contributions
and other to defined

Directors’ benefits in  Discretionary  contribution

fees kind bonus plans
A1
REAf M
BENEA MEwL  FE2HF
RM000 RM°000 RM’000 RM000 RM000
BEFL F¥Fr F¥Fr BT BEFL
Executive directors HTEE
Mr. Chong Yee Ping BEEEE - 333 - 8 3
Mr. Liu Yan Chee James 2B %4 - 269 - 10 279
Non-executive directors FHTEE
Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang AR - 202 - - 202
Mr. Lam Pang Wi EAE - 202 - - 202
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
Mr. Chan San Ping RAETEE - 74 - - 74
Mr. Su Chi Wen BRISUEE - 74 - - 74
Ms. Ho Suet Man Stella MEZL+ - 74 - - 74
- 1,228 - 18 1,246
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Year ended 30 November 2022 HE—ZE - —F+—A=FTHILFE

7. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Year ended 30 November 2021

EEME @)
BE-F-—F+-A=tALTE

Salaries,
allowances Contributions
and other to defined
Directors’ benefits in  Discretionary contribution
fees kind bonus plans Total
=
REf ERHR
2 EWEA BEEL  HEZER st
RM000 RM000 RM000 RM000 RM'000
FEFT B8 Vit S Vit S FEFT
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Chong Yee Ping BEMAE = 381 = 9 390
Mr. Liu Yan Chee James 2RBLE = 254 = 9 263
Non-executive directors FHTEE
Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang LA = 191 = = 191
Mr. Lam Pang IS EE = 191 = = 191
Independent non-executive BUFHTEE
directors
Mr. Chan San Ping BRETHE = 70 = = 70
Mr. Su Chi Wen BB L = 70 = = 70
Ms. Ho Suet Man Stella (IEE 3 G = 70 = = 70
— 1,227 - 18 1,245

During the years ended 30 November 2022 and 2021, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of these directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as a
compensation for loss of office. No directors waived or agreed
to waive any emoluments during the years ended 30 November
2022 and 2021.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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Year ended 30 November 2022 HE —E -~ F+—H=1+HILFE

8. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

An analysis of the five highest paid individuals during the years
ended 30 November 2022 and 2021 is as follows:

EEBREHFAL

REE-ZT-_—_Frk-_ZT-_—F+—HF=
+THIEFE  AEmeFALTzomm
T

Number of individuals

2021
—E-—F
Director o
Non-director FE=
5 5

Details of the remuneration of the above highest paid non-

director individuals are as follows:

Pl ESFHIFEEALZHMFBOT ¢

2022 2021
—E-= e =

RM’000 RM’000
BE¥TT BT T

Salaries, allowances and other e EER
benefits in kind EtEYEF 804 715
Contributions to defined contribution plans  EZBH# T2 2 3 30 78
834 793

The number of these non-director individuals whose emoluments

fell within the following emoluments band is as follows:

Nil to HK$1,000,000

Z% 1,000,000/ 7T

hEFEEATZMEN T TS EE
ZAETE

During the years ended 30 November 2022 and 2021, no
remuneration was paid by the Group to any of these highest
paid non-director individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group, or as a compensation for loss of office. None
of these highest paid non-director individuals waived or has
agreed to waive any emoluments during the years ended 30
November 2022 and 2021.

REBEEZZ-__FR-T-_—F+—H=
THIEFEA @ AEBHREREAEER
SHFEFATINEY - (EARSIEE
INASINAR S E R 2 52E) - skiiERHEEE
BHE REE-Z_—_FR-ZT-—F
T—A=THLEFER  BEAMLES
REHHFEEATHEXKRBRET MM

ZBHE o
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Year ended 30 November 2022 HE—ZE - —F+—A=FTHILFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSES Fr&®iB <
2022 2021
—E2=-= —E_—F
RM’000 RM’000
BE%Fr Vi e
Current tax BIHABE 18
Malaysia corporate income tax SRFR B EATEN
(“Malaysia CIT”) ([ ERFEREMEH ) 152 29
Deferred tax EERE (8) 19
Total income tax expenses AEEMREHEREE
for the year 144 48

The group entities established in the Cayman Islands and the
British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) are exempted from income
tax. No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as
the Group had no assessable profits arising in or derived from

Hong Kong.

Malaysia CIT is calculated at 24% (2021: 24 %) of the estimated
assessable profits for the year ended 30 November 2022.
Malaysia incorporated entities with paid-up capital of RM2.5
million (2021: RM2.5 million) or less enjoy tax rate of 17% (2021:
17%) on the first RM600,000 (2021: RM600,000) and remaining
balance of the estimated assessable profits at tax rate of 24%
(2021: 24%) for the year ended 30 November 2022.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

RRASHENABRARNE ([ RER LR
DRIz EEERERCHNEHAE
B ARAKEYENS B EBELER
Bog A - ML ER BB SRR EE
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=T FE &R Btk A1l 2 B 2 5 % 600,000 7T ( =
T — —4F : F#600,000T) BT EAT%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2022 HEZ —ZE - —F+—A=F+HILFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

Mixsol Sdn. Bhd. (“Mixsol”) has obtained the pioneer status
effective from 23 September 2011. A pioneer status company is
eligible for exemption from income tax on eligible activities and
products for five years and subject to submitting a formal request
to the Malaysia Investment Development Authority on or prior
to expiration date and upon the Ministry of International Trade
and Industry confirming that Mixsol has been complying with
all the applicable conditions as imposed, the tax relief period
shall be extended for a further five years after each five-year
tax relief period ends.

The pioneer status for Mixsol has been renewed during the
year ended 30 November 2016 and was expired on 30 June
2021. Upon the expiration of pioneer status, Mixsol is subject
to Malaysia CIT since 1 July 2021.

R (&)

Mixsol Sdn. Bhd. ([ Mixsol ) B E{5 %7 &
Ty BE-_T——FNA-_+=H#
AR e FTE T ¥ 2 AEABKARA
FHREREFDRERESHEH B &
AR = B Bisk 2 Al B R PR an ik & B R
RBRREXNHFE ' ERBEBEESMITER
EREBTAEMZEEEAGEE - RE
FAFETMEBERE @ RRBTE—FPER
RE o

Mixsol T E T ¥ MR =T — RN F+—
BA=1+HALEEREH  TR=_T=—F
NAZTBER o RITFE I MM ER
% ' Mixsol BZZ=—FtA—HEH
BRMERADREEMER o

Reconciliation of income tax expenses FREHREZ 2 HEE
2022 2021
—E__ =55 = =

RM’000 RM’000

BETFr BHFT
Loss before income tax B PSRl &R (6,592) (6,219)
Income tax at applicable tax rate RERABESE 2 EH (1,082) (1,380)
Non-deductible expenses DEE R 1,295 1,205
Tax-exempt revenue R (194) (4)
Unrecognised tax losses RIERTIIEEIE 144 231
Others Hh (19) (4)
Income tax expenses Frisfim 144 48

The applicable tax rate is the weighted average of rates
prevailing in the territories in which the Group’s entities operate
against profit or loss before tax. The change in applicable tax
rate is caused by changes in the taxable results of the Group’s
subsidiaries in the respective countries in which the Group

operates.

BRARE/AREERKEMELRR N
STERR B AT M KB R 2 AT R 2 I
FHBRE - BRARE L EPHRMAKEEL
BRGAESHBER 2 KEHE AR
ZIERAREE B -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR MR

Year ended 30 November 2022 HEZE—ZE - —F+—A=F+HILFE

10. LOSS PER SHARE 10. BREE
The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share attributable AAEEBEARGERERARBEEHET)
to owners of the Company is based on the following information: BIEATEIETE
2022 2021
—E-C —E-—F
RM’000 RM’000
BT ST T
Loss for the year attributable to the owners ~FR{ERFEERERK
of the Company, used in basic and diluted #EEEEZ AR F
loss per share calculation HmE AEIEFEER (6,736) (6,267)

Number of shares

REE
Weighted average number of ordinary BT EBRERNREEBHEZ
shares for basic and diluted T imAR e T AR
loss per share calculation 390,000,000 390,000,000
Diluted loss per share are same as the basic loss per share HRBE_ZE-_—_Fk-_ZFT-_—F+—A
as there are no dilutive potential ordinary shares in existence =tHILFE  WEENABTHEELE
during the years ended 30 November 2022 and 2021. ZEBRR - SREEEEREGIRENES
A o
11. DIVIDENDS 11. RE
The directors of the Group did not recommend the payment of AREBESWITERABRBE_S _—F+
final dividend for the year ended 30 November 2022 (2021: Nil). —A=tTHLEFERGKRBBRE(=ZF=
—4F  fE) o
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Year ended 30 November 2022 HEZ —ZE - —F+—A=F+HILFE

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. ¥ ~ WBERRE

Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and office Computer
Buildings  improvements equipment equipment Total
BE £ER
BT  HENEZEE PAZRE ERRE @t
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Vil Vit o BT Vil o Vit s
Reconciliation of carrying REEHR-
amount - Year ended HEZZ--51-R
30 November 2021 =tHRLER
At 1 December 2020 RZZ-Z4+-A—H 1,223 46 98 818 2,185
Additions RE - — 13 103 116
Depreciation ik (28) (12) (7) (403) (450)
At 30 November 2021 WZE=—F+-A=+H 1,195 34 104 518 1,851
Reconciliation of carrying REEHR-
amount - Year ended HE-B--E+-4
30 November 2022 =tALEE
At 1 December 2021 W=E-—%+-f-H 1,195 34 104 518 1,851
Additions AE - - 5 181 186
Depreciation bl (28) (12) 9) (408) (457)
At 30 November 2022 H=8==Ft-A=1F 1,167 22 100 291 1,580
At 30 November 2021 WZZ=-%+-A=+H
Cost XA 1,390 112 280 1,434 3,216
Accumulated depreciation 23t (195) (78) (176) (916) (1,365)
1,195 34 104 518 1,851
At 30 November 2022 RZB-Z#+-B=1H
Cost AR 1,390 112 285 1,615 3,402
Accumulated depreciation 2iHTE (223) (90) (185) (1,324) (1,822)
1,167 22 100 291 1,580
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Year ended 30 November 2022 HE—ZE - —F+—A=FTHILFE

13. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE

13. ERAKEEREEER

LIABILITIES
Right-of-use assets ERREEE
Office Motor
premises vehicles Total
WAEYE RE et
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
EEFr EEFr EEFr
Reconciliation of carrying AR (B T AR —
amount — Year ended 30 HE_ZT-—%+—A8
November 2021 =t+HIEFE
At 1 December 2020 RZZEZZF+-_A—H 53 785 838
Addition NE 196 317 513
Depreciation e (101) (259) (360)
Contract termination A HRIE (17) — (17)
At 30 November 2021 R-ZT-——F+—H=+H 131 843 974
Reconciliation of carrying IREEY K-
amount — Year ended 30 BE-_ZT-_—F%F
November 2022 +—BA=1tHLEE
At 1 December 2021 R-ZT_-_—F+-F—H 131 843 974
Depreciation e (98) (283) (381)
At 30 November 2022 R-ZE-_—_F+—HA=+H 33 560 593
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Year ended 30 November 2022 HE —E -~ F+—H=1+HILFE

13. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (continued)

13. FRAEEERHEEERE#)

Right-of-use assets (continued) FERESEE)
Office Motor
premises vehicles Total
i NEL Y E RE Fob
RM’'000 RM’000 RM’000
BT BT BT
At 30 November 2021 RZZTE=_—F+—A=+H
Cost BN 196 1,644 1,840
Accumulated depreciation — ZFFITE (65) (801) (866)
Net carrying amount ARTEDFE 131 843 974
At 30 November 2022 R-B-=—F+—H=+H
Cost 2%N 196 1,644 1,840
Accumulated depreciation ~ ZFHIfE (163) (1,084) (1,247)
Net carrying amount IREDFE 33 560 593
Lease liabilities HEAE
2022 2021
—E-= e — =
RM’000 RM’000
B¥Tr I 5D
Current portion mENEL S 204 237
Non-current portion FERENE D 771 974
975 i1l 271

The Group leases various office premises and motor vehicles for
its operation and the lease terms ranging from two to nine years
(2021: two to nine years). The total cash outflow for lease was
approximately RM292,000 (2021: approximately RM264,000) for
the year ended 30 November 2022.

At 30 November 2022, the weighted average effective interest
rate for the lease liabilities of the Group was 5.7% per annum
(2021: 4.3%).

AEBEREZRM DB RZETEHE
EEZH HENF_ENEAE(=F
Z—F I ZENF) c REBEZZT =
+—A=1+THILFE  rHENBESRLE
B AFK292,000L(ZF=—F - 45
#264,0005T) °

R-ZT-_—F+—A=+H  AEBEHEE
BENNEFTHERFENERES7% (=
=42 2 4L5%) ©
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Year ended 30 November 2022 HEZE—ZE - —F+—A=F+HILFE

14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 14. EFREE

Internally
developed
technologies

PP B B 2 B
RM’'000
ST

Reconciliation of carrying amount — Year ended REEHR-AE_T——

30 November 2021 +T—A=t+HILEFE
At 1 December 2020 R=EZ =245 = H—H 2,977
Additions NE 2,865
Amortisation i3] (2,782)
At 30 November 2021 R-ZE——F+—HA=+H 3,060
Reconciliation of carrying amount — Year ended MREEHR-BE-—T=-—F
30 November 2022 +—RA=tHLEE

At 1 December 2021 RZE=Z—F+=A—H 3,060
Additions NE 3,267
Amortisation e (4,282)
At 30 November 2022 R-B=-=—F+—HA=+H 2,045

At 30 November 2021 WZZ=——F+—HA=+H
Cost DN 11,247
Accumulated amortisation and impairment loss ZEH I MR E SR (8,187)
3,060

At 30 November 2022 R=ZE=-—_%F+—-HA=+H
Cost (DN 14,514
Accumulated amortisation and impairment loss ZETHEEH MR E B 1R (12,469)
2,045
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Year ended 30 November 2022 HEZ —ZE - —F+—A=F+HILFE

14.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Development costs represented costs incurred at the
development phase of certain new technologies, which are
capitalised and amortised (if applicable) in accordance with
the accounting policies set out in Note 2 to the consolidated

financial statements.

At 30 November 2022 and 2021, all the intangible assets are

available for use.

The Group carried out annual impairment test for intangible
assets where an indicator of impairment appears by comparing
their recoverable amounts to their carrying amounts at the end

of the reporting period.

The Group, through its subsidiaries in Malaysia, is engaged in
the provision of system integration and development services
and maintenance services (the “System Integration CGU”). In
view of the deteriorating economy and the continuous situation of
COVID-19 pandemic during the years ended 30 November 2022
and 2021, the management considered that there is impairment

indicator under the System Integration CGU.

14.

BELEE#®)

R KA E TH R 2 R ATE
EZKA - RERBESUVBERME2
PRl 2 @7 R T PAE AL B 35 (fin i
R) -

R_BE-——FR-_ZF-_—F+—A=+
B FIEEFEESJEER -

AEBEBEANBERARLRELEE A
Yol eBEEREE @ HHEEE L IRBED
SETFERERR -

INE B 3 38 HL A PO S 2R 7 2R A BT BB A ml e
ERHEANES KHAERBEMAEERE
([ZmBEBECEELEMN]) - ERHEZ
T FRZT—F+—HA=+THILF
EHEEBE(L RCOVID-19&Z BIFEIE
B BEHERRRABREREEAEBMT
FERERRZ -
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B AR MR

Year ended 30 November 2022 HE—ZE - —F+—A=FTHILFE

14.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

At 30 November 2022, the Group assessed the recoverable
amount of the System Integration CGU based on the value-in-
use calculation using pre-tax cash flow projections covering
a 3-year period which is provided by the management. The
estimated revenue and costs for each individual intangible asset
were based on management expectation and best assessment
based on currently available information. The estimated revenue
in future periods is projected based on the ongoing projects
and projects in tender. In view of reopening of market under
COVID-19 pandemic, the management make estimates based
on the projects and tenders currently in progress and assuming
the performance of the Group maintaining at a steady level
at an average growth rate of 2% (2021: 1%). Accordingly,
the recoverable amount of the System Integration CGU was
approximately RM3,217,000 (2021: approximately RM4,760,000)
and no impairment loss should be recognised (2021: no
impairment loss was recognised) for the remaining non-current
assets allocated to the System Integration CGU at 30 November
2022.

Key assumptions and inputs used for value-in-use calculation

are as follows:

14.

BLEE#®)

R-_ZT-_—&+—HF=+H AEBER
BEREEREN-FHTNRSTER
AEEREBETE  THEARERSHE
EXBANATKRESE SHEFEE
B il 51 A RN B AR 15 DA B 3 T RO TE HA
ERBABARNGETHAER - KK
HEOETRADRIREEETHNIER
MHBIZIE B FTTEA - MR COVID-19%
ETHMSEFHAN EEEREBALE
FEHEITHIER FMBFRETMH - LRR
AREENEERBERENKE - F5iE
RER2% (ZFE=-—4F:1%) - At -
ARELHSELABMNNAKESELD
B HE®3,217,000c(=ZFE=—F - 495
#4,760,000T) MR T = =_F+—
R=THEERSIETEAEEREE
AEBMHERERDEERAREEE
(ZE=-—F  BEREERERZ)

RRERBEEFENIZRTMEARE
e

2021

— T —F

Average gross profit margin FHERM = 30% | 28%

Average growth rate g R 2% | 1%

Discount rate RL IR 3 7% 1 7%
The management considered that any reasonable possible EREERE  ERBASRESELBMME

change in the key assumptions used in the value-in-use
calculation on the System Integration CGU would not cause

an impairment loss.

The remaining amortisation period of Blackbutton and CUSTPRO
at 30 November 2022 are up to 12 months (2021: 15 months)
and 15 months (20217: Nil) with carrying amount of approximately
RM1,127,000 (2021: RM3,060,000) and RM918,000 (2021: Nil),
respectively.

CUSTPRO enables customers to use it for their customer
relationship management while Blackbutton further enables
customers to link their customer relationship management to

the e-payment for their services provided to the customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2022 HEZ —ZE - —F+—A=F+HILFE

15. SUBSIDIARIES 15. HEA T

Details of subsidiaries at the end of the reporting period are

RBEMRZMBRRFBEOT

as follows:
Paid-up/
registered share Attributable equity interest  Principal activities and Legal form of corporate
Name of subsidiary Place of incorporation capital held by the Company place of operation existence
WEAFER AR B /iRA ARARGEEER IEEPREEHY ARRENERKS
“ECCE el
Directly held by the Company
FRAERRE
Excel Elite Global Limited The BVI United States Dollar 100% 100%  Investment holding, Hong Private limited liability
(USS") 13,890 Kong company
Excel Elite Global Limited EBRUEE 13,8907 RERR B4 LEERAE
(I%7))
Indirectly held by the Company
ARARRRE
Mixsol Malaysia RMS,200,502 100% 100%  Provision of system integration Private limited liability
(2021: RM200,502) and computer related company
services, Malaysia
Mixsol SREE 555,200,502 RUZAECREREERE . HEERAA
Ef: SREE
BH2005027 )
Concorde Technology Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia RM500,000 100% 100%  Provision of IT products and  Private limited liability
services, Malaysia company.
Concorde Technology San. Bnd. SREE 55H500,0007C REEANRERRRS - WERRAA
SRS
Tandem Advisory Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia RM1,500,000 100% 100%  Provision of management Private limited liability
advice and consultancy company
services for computer
software and information
technology, Malaysia
Tandem Advisory Sdn. Bhd. BRER #%1,500,000T REGBERSHRAINR  ALEERAA
LEBE R RHARE
i
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e B ER R M

Year ended 30 November 2022 HE —&T ——

Frt—HA=1THILFE

16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

16. E5 R HMEWKE

2022 2021
—E-C T —F

Notes RM’000 RM’000
Hiat E¥Fr BT
Trade receivables from third parties EWE=52E5
EWHE 2,915 9,807
Less: Loss allowance R BB 28 (73) (999)
16(a) 2,842 8,808
Other receivables H {th U I8
Deposits, prepayments and other Be  BRARREM
receivables FE WK TE 16(b) 263 782
3,105 9,590
(a) Trade receivables from third parties (a) EWE=FZESEKWRE

The Group normally grants credit periods of up to 30 days,

from the date of issuance of invoices, to its customers as

approved by the management on a case by case basis.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of loss

allowance) based on invoice date

reporting period is as follows:

at the end of the

AEE—RZEANERRAERERS R
FTREEEMMEREZHABRSRE
FTEE30BZIEEH -

RIFER REZAHPE L2 E
SEWF (MR EEEE) 2 Rk
DT :

2022 2021
—=—-= —T-—%F

RM’000 RM’000

F¥Fr EEFT

Within 30 days 30K A 1,289 6,525
31 to 60 days 31£E60X 738 165
61 to 90 days 61290k 76 78
91 to 180 days 91£180K 53 65
181 to 365 days 1812365k 516 196
Over 365 days HBiA365K 170 1,784
2,842 8,808
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 30 November 2022 &

Frt—HA=1THILFE

16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Trade receivables from third parties (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis
of the trade receivables (net of loss allowance) by due

date is as follows:

16. EZ R EMBWYRKE )

(a)

BWE=7 285 BYREAE

RIERR - mafRHEs 2 E
WA EEEE) 2 Rk
DT -

2022 2021
—E-= T —F

RM’000 RM’000

F¥Fr BT

Not yet due K480 HA 1,352 6,545
Past due: wEg

Within 30 days 30AA 675 159

31 to 60 days 31E60X 76 61

61 to 90 days 61E90K - 2

91 to 180 days 91ZE 180K 216 62

181 to 365 days 1812365k 355 693

Over 365 days HBiA365K 168 1,286

1,490 2,263

2,842 8,808

Deposits, prepayments and other receivables

Included in deposits, prepayments and other receivables
at 30 November 2021 were Goods and Services Tax
receivables of approximately RM649,000. The amount
was settled during the year ended 30 November 2022.

(b)

2% ANRREMERRE

RZE-—F+—-A=+H " &
& - BRRREMERKIES BE
FE W & & & AR 7% B 49 55 B 649,000
T RREERBEZZT -+
—RA=+AHILFERLE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR MR

Year ended 30 November 2022 HE —E - —F+—HA=+HIFE

17. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 17. BREEREGHNEE
LIABILITIES
2022 2021
—E-C—F —E-_—F
RM’000 RM’000
E¥Fr ETFor
Contracts in progress EITHHER
Contract costs incurred plus recognised BE%S HIKANE ER
profits less recognised losses to date wm AR S B EREE 69,336 74,319
Less: progress billings received and A B EWGE S R IE
receivable (69,056) (74,860)
280 (541)
Analysed for the reporting purpose: ERERBZ D
2022 2021
ol S - —E_—4F
Notes RM’000 RM’000
Bt &t BT BT
Contract assets BREE 17(a) 1,051 287
Contract liabilities EHEE 17(b) (771) (828)
280 (541)
There was no retention held by customers on services contracts n= —FR-_FE-_—F+—A=+

FA = —
at 30 November 2022 and 2021. A EPFUYERREEOFERES -
A :;E
AN
=

At 30 November 2022 and 2021, the contract assets and liabilities n ZZERZIFBE—F+—-—RA=+
are expected to be received or settled within 12 months. =] WEEKBEEEN12(8 8 AUE
B ©
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Year ended 30 November 2022 HE —E -~ F+—H=1+HILFE

17. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (continued)

The movements (excluding those arising from increases and
decreases both occurred within the same year) of contract
assets and contract liabilities with customers within IFRS 15

during the year ended 30 November 2022 are as follows:

17.

BE_FT__F+-A=+tHALFE R
BRI R E 1SR BENREF]
UZENEAZENBERANAESR
(TERERFENERRBMBHIEEZ
ZE)wmT

(a) Contract assets (a) BHEE
2022 2021
—=-— —E-—F
RM’000 RM’000
BETFr BT
At the beginning of ¥R B
the reporting period 287 166
Recognition of revenue R = 1,002 238
Transferred to trade receivables WL EE 5 EWGIR (238) (117)
At the end of the reporting period R R HIR 1,051 287

There is an increase in the overall contract activities
and customer base of the Group for the year ended 30
November 2022 and the ongoing contracts at the end
of the reporting period, thereby increasing the amount

arising from the recognition of revenue.

BHE-_Z-__F+—-—A=1+RHItHF
B AEBBRBENEIREFH
BAMEER  BRMEHEK  #E84
ZINEFTIE N - HE T IE AR A
FTEAMSEE o

(b) Contract liabilities (b) EHEE
2022 2021
—E-C—F s — k=
RM’000 RM’000
B¥Fr BT
At the beginning of JiNea =g K|
the reporting period 828 2,144
Receipt in advance TE U RIE 389 231
Recognition of revenue TR = (446) (1,547)
At the end of the reporting period RS HIR 771 828

At 30 November 2022, the aggregate amount of transaction
price allocated to unsatisfied performance obligations
is approximately RM12.2 million (2021: approximately
RM9.3 million). The Group expects the transaction price
allocated to the unsatisfied performance obligations will

be recognised as revenue within one year or less.

RZZEZZF+—A=+AH " 5
ERERNBHETNRHERE
B4 AE%12,200,0007T( —F = —
F 5 #9.3000007T) ° AEE
BHAIRERERNBATEENR
SERBR —FEEREANER
BlEs o
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Year ended 30 November 2022 HE—ZE - —F+—A=FTHILFE

18.

19.

RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES

The Group had obtained banking facilities on issuance of
bank guarantees granted by certain creditworthy banks. Such
facilities were guaranteed by the restricted bank balances.
At 30 November 2022, the Group had utilised approximately
RM649,000 (2021: approximately RM466,000) under such
facilities for issuing bank guarantees to customers in respect

of the Group’s fulfilment of related contracts.

BANK DEPOSIT AND BALANCES AND CASH

18.

19.

ZRFBITEER

AEEERBTHE TAEERTREZ
IRITERIGBRITHE - BRAMEHIR
HRITAERFTER - RAEERETHEBAS
AmMs REBR-_TE-_—_F+—A=+
B REFBTRITERCBAZMER
T4 E#649,000L (= F=—F : HFH
466,0007T) °

RITERRERURRE

2022 2021
—=E—= —E-—F

RM’000 RM’000

E% T EHFr

Cash at banks and in hand RITRFBERS 4,573 7,181
Short-term time deposits G HATE HBT7 3K 2,071 7,908
6,644 15,089

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
floating bank deposit rate. Short-term time deposits are made
for three months, and earn interest at the prevailing deposit
rates. The Group can withdraw the short-term fixed time deposits
anytime before the maturity date without incurring any significant

bank charges.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2022 HEZ —ZE - —F+—A=F+HILFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 20. ESRHEMEMNRIE

2022 2021
—=—-= T

Note RM’000 RM’000
iz BT HE T
Trade payables from third parties EBRE=FA2E5
A RRIE 20(a) 110 8,196
Other payables H fth B FR 18
Accruals and other payables FES B R I Hoth FE 15 OB 2,764 3,435
2,874 11,631
(a) Trade payables from third parties (a) ERNE=SzEZEMARE

RBEHR  RERBHEOIZE
HENFIRZIRE AT

2022 2021
—E——F —F——%F

At the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of

the trade payables based on invoice date is as follows:

RM’000 RM’'000

BE¥Fr EETFT

Within 30 days 30K 64 5,661
31 to 60 days 31ZE60X - 450
61 to 90 days 61Z290K - 150
91 to 180 days 91E 180K 11 900
181 to 365 days 181£E 365K - 1,000
Over 365 days 365K 35 35
110 8,196

The credit term on trade payables is up to 90 days.

EHRNRBAZEEMRSZ KBOX -
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Year ended 30 November 2022 HE—ZE - —F+—A=FTHILFE

21.

INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS FEEE
2022 2021
—E-—fF —E-—F
RM’000 RM’000
BT ST T
Interest-bearing borrowings (secured) FREE(EER) 829 853
Carrying amounts of interest-bearing ARUATFHEEZGTEEE
borrowings that are repayable (Note) REE (M)
Within one year —FR 39 44
One to two years —EMF 41 49
Two to five years MZERSF 134 160
Over five years HRAF 615 600
829 853

Note: The interest-bearing borrowings, with a clause in their terms

that gives the lender an overriding right to demand repayment
at their sole discretion, are classified as current liabilities even
though the management does not expect that the lender would
exercise its rights to demand repayment. The amounts due are
presented based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the

loan agreements.

The interest-bearing borrowings represent amounts due to

a bank in Malaysia with a maturity period of 15 years at 30
November 2022.

At 30 November 2022 and 2021, the interest-bearing borrowings

bore a floating interest rate at the bank’s Base Lending Rate

minus 2.10% per annum. The effective interest rate on interest-
bearing borrowings at 30 November 2022 is 3.9% (2021: 2.3%)

per annum.

The interest-bearing borrowings are drawn under a banking

facility. The interest-bearing borrowings are secured and

guaranteed by:

(0)

(if)

properties owned by the Group with aggregate net
carrying amount of approximately RM1,167,000 (2021:
approximately RM1,195,000) at 30 November 2022, as set

out in Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements; and

guarantees provided by Mr. Chong Yee Ping and Mr.
Siah Jiin Shyang, the ultimate controlling parties and the

directors of the Group.
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Hfet s BEEZER —RIERETERAE
B—UER - TRESEIIEEERE
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B i EEERBTEEERNEZ)ZH)
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+—HA=+H R EEZERMNERSF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2022 HE —E -~ F+—H=1+HILFE

22.

23.

DEFERRED TAX 22. EEHIE
The movement in the Group’s deferred tax liabilities arising from NTFAERBE-T_—_FRrR_F=_—F+
depreciation allowance for the years ended 30 November 2022 —A=tHILGEENEREELEZARE
and 2021 was as follows: B2 RERIE A EEE
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
RM’000 RM’000
BMFT FMEToT
At the beginning of the reporting period RS BT 31 12
(Credit) Charge to profit or loss wiEz (GEA) B (8) 19
At the end of the reporting period RIREHR 23 31
Unrecognised deferred tax assets REREEREEE
At 30 November 2022, the Group has tax losses arising in RZZE-_ZF+—A=+H XEBERE
Malaysia of approximately RM3,336,000 (2021: approximately PG EE E AR B IEEE 2 E % 3,336,000
RM2,737,000) that can be offset against future taxable profits TW(ZE=——4F : F#2 7370007 )7 B
of the respective subsidiaries, which can be carried for 7 R S 5B A BRI R SR FER B A A - 7]
consecutive years of assessment (i.e. from year of assessment HEFELEFNFERIZZEZ=52=2F
2023 to 2029 (2021: 2022 to 2028)). Deferred tax assets have :jl.ﬂ'mir(_ e el e e =
not been recognised in respect of the tax losses because it is ZEZNEFE)) o EF$%@EA$XTKT
not probable that future taxable profit will be available against BEESERT R M ABRAE @HIENE
which the Group can utilise the benefits therefrom. W E B E IS ERE LR IEEE
SHARE CAPITAL 23. A&

Ordinary share of HK$0.01 each SREE0.01ETTZ EEE

Authorised: Yy

At 1 December 2020, RZZ-Z4+-A-H"
30 November 2021 —T-—-f+-R=+H

Number of

shares
ROHE

Equivalent
to RM
HERES

and 30 November 2022 R-Z--%#+-A=+H 2,000,000,000 20,000,000 10,596,200
Issued and fully paid: BREIREBEAR :
At 1 December 2020, it 2 s bl =

30 November 2021 ZZ-—&+-A=+H

and 30 November 2022 R=Z-=%+-A=+H 390,000,000 3,900,000 2,067,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR MR

Year ended 30 November 2022 HE—ZE - —F+—A=FTHILFE

24. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 24, XRQFZ2BBMRRE
COMPANY

RBEEDREPIZHERE - AARH
B R REREEESIT

2022 2021
—E-C T —F

Pursuant to the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, the statement of financial position of the

Company and the movements in its reserves are set out below:

Notes RM’000 RM’000
KiaE B¥% T EEFr
Non-current assets RBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—EB AR ZRE 15 57 57
Current assets REEE
Deposits, prepayments and other TR~ AR R E AL pE U
receivables HIE 18 16
Due from a subsidiary JE U — IR B A R 3k 1B 7,307 9,103
Bank balances and cash RITHEB RIS 1,492 4,620
8,817 13,739
Current liabilities REAE
Accruals and other payables FEET & FA K H fh FE < 518 513 477
Due to subsidiaries FEAT B B A RISk IE - 115
513 592
Net current assets REBEEFE 8,304 13,147
NET ASSETS EEZFE 8,361 13,204
Capital and reserves BEAR @i
Share capital A& 23 2,067 2,067
Reserves k] 24(a) 6,294 11,137
TOTAL EQUITY ERmE 8,361 13,204

KB BRARER —_E-_=F—-H -+ /\H
EEEZoERRETR  THTINES
REEZ:

This statement of financial position was approved and authorised
for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 February 2023 and
signed on its behalf by

Chong Yee Ping Liu Yan Chee James

EEIE 288
Director Director
BF BF
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B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2022 HEZ —ZE - —F+—A=F+HILFE

24. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 24, KD TE] 2 B HEARRIR (&)
COMPANY (continued)

(a) Movements of the reserves (a) fEEZ22E
Share Capital Exchange  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
BRGEE EARE ESifRfE R ER by
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM000  RM'000

ik o bid. B¥TFr BkFTr  BETn
(Note 25(a))  (Note 25(b))  (Note 25(c))
(Higts(a)  (Hiatzsm))  (Bides(c)

At 1 December 2020 R-E-FF+-f—H 28,732 57 - (12,765) 16,024
Loss for the year and total FEFRRFEZELES

comprehensive expenses

for the year - - - (4,887) (4,887)
At 30 November 2021 and WZZZ—F+—-A=+H

1 December 2021 k=—T-——-%+-F—H 28,732 o1 - (17,652) 11,137
Loss for the year FEBR - - - (5899)  (5,899)

Other comprehensive income: Hitt 2 ER
Item that will not be reclassified RETREENIEZE

to profit or loss BzZEA
Exchange difference on translation ~ #AEARAHEHRERA

of the Company’s financial BHER I ERER

statements to presentation

currency - - 1,056 - 1,056
Total comprehensive income FEREEMA (AR)

(expenses) for the year - - 1,056 (5,899) (4,843)
At 30 November 2022 R=®==£+-B=+8 28,732 57 1,056 (23551) 6,204
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Year ended 30 November 2022 H#E - - —F+—A=1+HILFE

25. RESERVES

()

(b)

(c)

Share premium

It represents the excess of the net proceeds from issuance
of the Company’s shares over its par value. Under the
law of the Cayman Islands and the Company’s Articles
of Association, it is distributable to the Company’s
shareholders provided that the Company is able to pay its

debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
Capital reserve

For the consolidated statement of financial position of
the Group and the statement of financial position of the
Company, it represents the aggregate amount of the issued
and paid-up share capital of the entities now comprising
the Group before completion of the Reorganisation (as
defined in the prospectus issued by the Company dated
29 September 2018) and the Company, respectively, less
consideration paid to acquire the relevant interests (if any)

upon completion of the Reorganisation.
Exchange reserve

Exchange reserve of the Group comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from translation of the
financial statements of the Group’s subsidiaries and
the translation of the Company’s financial statements
to presentation currency. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies as set out in Note

2 to the consolidated financial statements.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

25. f#fE
(a)

(b)

(c)

IR A7 % E
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REFHBEHEEERD - BRIEM
ERBEERENRE AR ZABEREA
A MARRBRENE-—RES
BREPREEBIME XN ARG
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EAE

RAEB 2GR BRAREAR
RIZHBIKARME @ EXFEED
RIFER X EE(EZE R AR AT
ZEHBMAZZT—N\FALAZ=TA
NBRER)INREEXN T EE 2B
BRARRIZEETRBRRKRAL
B - R TT K B2 4R 1& it Uk AR A
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2R - BEREA M REN A
BRI REAS -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2022 HEZ —ZE - —F+—A=F+HILFE

26. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON THE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS

(a)

(b)

Major non-cash transactions

(i)  During the year ended 30 November 2021, the
Group acquired one motor vehicle by means of
lease arrangement with a total capital value at
the inception date of the lease of approximately
RM317,000.

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities

Details of changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from

financing activities are as follows:

Year ended 30 November 2022

26. FEREREBRZANEH

(a)

(b)

FTEFRERH

(i REBEEZT=-_—F+—A=+
BIEFE AEERBHEE
ZHWET —@WRE - £HE
s BMRERBENAFS
317,0007T °

RMEEHEE 2 BEHEK

AEERERHELZABRDH
eI

BE-ZE__F5+—A=tHLEFE

Non-cash
changes
FRSBE
At At
1 December 30 November
2021 Cash flows 2022
R=B=—%F R=B=Z=fF
+=A—H REnE +—HA=+H
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
BT BT BT
Interest-bearing REE
borrowings 853 (24) 829
Lease liabilities HEBE 1,211 (236) 975
Total liabilities from BMERHEEL
financing activities a5 2,064 (260) 1,804
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR MR

Year ended 30 November 2022 &f

26. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON THE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

FLOWS (continued)

E-ET_F+—A=1+HILEFE

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities (continued)

26. FEREREBRZBHNER @)

(b) RMEFDELEZEBHIRGE)

Year ended 30 November 2021 HE—_Z-_—F+—F=+HIHF
=
Non-cash
changes
HRLLD
At At
1 December Contract 30 November
2020 Cash flows Addition termination 2021
RZZZZF RZTZ—F
+=A-H Reme 0 AHKIE +-A=tH
RM'000 RM000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
SETT Vot Vot Vot ST
Interest-bearing STEMREE
borrowings 853 — — — 853
Lease liabilities HERRE 966 (212) 476 (19) 1,211
Total liabilities from MEEDELL
financing activities BELSE 1,819 (212) 476 (19) 2,064

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2022 HEZ —ZE - —F+—A=F+HILFE

27. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions/information disclosed elsewhere

in the consolidated financial statements, the Group had the

following transactions with related parties:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Transaction with a director of the Company

On 20 March 2018, the Group entered into a tenancy
agreement with Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang to lease the property
commencing on 1 April 2018. For the year ended 30
November 2022, the related cash outflow for leases
was approximately RM103,200 (2021: approximately
RM103,200).

Remuneration for key management personnel

(including directors) of the Group

27. BHBAERS
BREAMBREAMBIFBREZXS,

BRI

(a)

(b)

AEBBATHEB TR

BAQF-REBEZXS

RZE—NFE=A=Z+H  x5H
B EET Y HE RS A=
T-N\FHA—BREAEZWE -
HE-_Z-_—_F+—A=1+HIL#F
E - HEAEBERSREBHNAR
B 103,200 0( —F = —F : F &
103,2007T) °

FEBTEEEAS(BEES)Z
)]

2022 2021
o5 ===
RM’000 RM’000
V-7 -8 BEEFr

Salaries, allowances and other e REEREHMMEYET
benefits in kind 2,101 1,620

Contributions to defined TE RS RGN B2 AR

contribution schemes 74 40
2,175 1,660

Further details of the directors’ remuneration are set out

in Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.
Personal guarantees obtained

The ultimate controlling parties have provided unlimited
personal guarantees in respect of the interest-bearing
borrowings obtained by the Group from a bank in Malaysia
as set out in Note 21 to the consolidated financial

statements.

(c)

EEFMcE—FFHBH
TBHRMFET
EMEZEARR
HNEFE M BHRME21ME - &
REETERARBER —RSRA
TRITEG Z 518 B IR &R (E
AFER o

=

op

)

=
W
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR MR

Year ended 30 November 2022 HE—ZE - —F+—A=FTHILFE

28.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise interest-
bearing borrowings, lease liabilities, restricted bank balances
and bank balances and cash. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise and maintain finance for the
Group’s operations. The Group has various other financial
instruments such as trade and other receivables/payables
and contract assets and liabilities which arise directly from its

business activities.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The management
generally adopts conservative strategies on its risk management
and limits the Group’s exposure to these risks to a minimum

level as follows:
Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates
relates primarily to the Group’s interest-bearing borrowings with
floating interest rates. The interest rates and terms of repayment
of the interest-bearing borrowings of the Group are disclosed in

Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

At the end of the reporting period, if interest rates had been
100 basis points higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s loss before income tax would increase/
decrease by approximately RM18,000 (2021: approximately
RM21,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied to the exposure to
interest rate risk in existence at that date. The 100 basis points
increase or decrease represents management’s assessment of
a reasonable possible change in interest rates over the period

until the next annual end of the report period.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

28.

cREKREERFERBEX

AEBFESRMIEBEFNEEE  H

E8E  XBRHSRTEBARRITHERRK
B  ZREeMIAZIZENARAE

Be2BRERBEME - -AKEHEE
EEBMEXBADERELZEMERT
B QB 5 R HE R, RN RIRIA K
BRHEERAR °

AEEemTEZZRBANERRE - F

E}—L Er#EeRk - BEE—RHE
ERRAVRTREE - WA EEEE

Z%%@F%E?ﬁ'ﬁ%@?i

Fl 2 [ By

AEEERHMNEEFH o m5RER - HE

EHAEEIRZEHEXRG R EEESR

o AEEEEEZANERE *{%E?Mé
A SRR HE -

REREHIR - W F =8 hn, A 1001E &
IR EMEHERFE - REERRTER
AT ES I8 &1 hn 5 A 4 55 #518,0007T (=

T4 : HF#21,0007T) °

L SRED N IRERFREEH N R E B
R#EE - AERZBHCEARERCHE
FEzMEREMEFE o 1001823 < &0
gt EEEHNEE MEHE AEF
ERAEEARMEZ N ERAE A EEE 2
fl e



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2022 HE —E -~ F+—H=1+HILFE

28.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that debtors will default on their
obligations to repay the amounts due to the Group, resulting
in a loss to the Group. The carrying amount of financial assets
and contract assets recognised on the consolidated statement of
financial position, which is net of impairment losses, represents
the Group’s exposure to credit risk without taking into account
the value of any collateral held or other credit enhancements.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk is summarised

28. cRIEAMEEEERKE &)
EERB
EERBIEEBABREBITEESEN

$‘$I,TAIEZ??& %iﬁ(¢‘$l” B8
ZRE - GENBBRRPEAZIEHEE
kA ,\’Jﬁﬁzﬁﬁﬁﬁ(?w@ﬁfﬁéﬂﬁ)1&2%
AEBEARZEERR - EPALETFAR
Ffr%%fﬂﬂﬁiﬁﬂuu&/\‘nﬂiE%ZE{E o R
SEMAEEXEERRERDT :

as follows:
2021
— T —F
RM’000 RM’000
B¥Fr BT
Contract assets EHEE 1,051 287
Trade and other receivables B 5 K E M e RIE 3,078 9,542
Restricted bank balances 2R IR T AL 4 649 466
Bank balances and cash RITEHBRRIRS 6,644 15,089
11,422 25,384
Trade receivables and contract assets BESRKFBERENEE
The Group trades only with recognised, creditworthy third parties. AEBEBARGEERTZE=ZFETR

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits for
the customer. The receivable balances are monitored on an
ongoing basis by senior management and the Group’s exposure
to bad debts is not significant.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The default risk of
the industry and country in which customers operate also has
an influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent. Credit quality
of a customer is assessed based on an extensive credit rating
and individual credit limit assessment which is mainly based on
the Group’s own trading records.

5 o ERZEMFHELH - RRBFFTE

BERPZEREAENARPEREEER

EE&%E - RWFRGEHERREEERAS
CMAREZZREARIY AEK °

AEEZFEERREERTPERFEY
& - @ﬁ%&%ﬁﬂf TERBRZEZORR
TerEEERR  BERERE - FPZ
EREERBE2ECEFARBAERAER
FEITHE  ZAHEEIEERARELR Y
ZRGFLEME °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR MR

Year ended 30 November 2022 H#E - - —F+—A=1+HILFE

28.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets (continued)

At 30 November 2022, the Group had a concentration of credit
risk as approximately 42.3% (2021: 66.0%) of the total trade
receivables and contract assets were due from the Group’s
largest trade debtor and contract assets and approximately
84.0% (2021: 95.1%) of the total trade receivables and contract
assets were due from the Group’s five largest trade debtors

and contract assets.

The Group’s customer base consists of a wide range of clients
and the trade receivables and contract assets are categorised
by common risk characteristics that are representative of the
customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due in accordance with
the contractual terms. The Group applies a simplified approach
in calculating ECL for trade receivables and contract assets
and recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at
each reporting date and has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment. The expected loss rate used in the
provision matrix is calculated for each category based on actual
credit loss experience over the past three years and adjusted
for current and forward-looking factors to reflect differences
between economic conditions during the period over which
the historical data has been collected, current conditions and
the Group’s estimate on future economic conditions over the
expected lives of the receivables. There was no change in the
estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during

the year.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

28. SRIEREEEERBE#)

FERREE)
ESRUMEREHEE (&)

RZTZZF+—A=+H HRH
42.3% (ZFE=—%F : 66.0%) 8 5 EW K
BRERGVNEEABRAEERZAES
BEBEAZRERENEE © k#184.0%
TE - —F 95 1%) 2B B ERKRTBELR
BREVNEERBRAEERKNE ZER
AZHRERENEE  MASEEEFE
BERER o

AEBzEPHBHEZZEFPEK BS
EYRRARRERSEIE - MRER
BRREPRBA QRRN A BIBK
RN - ARBERABILITEAEES
UFEREMNEENTEHEEEBR - I
RERSAHRBEEFTENRRAGES
BREREEREE  BCRIBRBEHEERE
EBRTHAENBRERR  YREBA
MR EREERRREEREFELAE -
BimERMANAENBREENRIEREE=
FHEREEBRERMSER - AkA
AIRBTEMERRELRE - URRKIES
EHEHRNQEMR I ER BRI ER
VAR A 65 18 4 FE WO SRR TR R SR IR A B9 R 2K
RBEFRR G - FA - [EFRITSIEL
MEBEARRILEEE o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2022 HEZ —ZE - —F+—A=F+HILFE

28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 28. SRIEREEEERBE#)
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued) FER(E)
Trade receivables and contract assets (continued) ESRKFBERENEE &)
The information about the exposure to credit risk and ECL for R_ZE——Fr-_ZFE-_—F+—HA=+H
trade receivables and contract assets using a provision matrix FREBEEEEEENERERMENEE
at 30 November 2022 and 2021 is summarised below. EERRERBEREEBIEERBENT -
At 30 November 2022 R-ZB-_—%+—-H=+H
Expected Gross carrying Loss Net carrying Credit-
loss rate amount allowance amount impaired
HAHEEE IREEALE BERE IR R E SERE
% RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
BE¥Tr BEMTrT BMTT
Trade receivable BWER
Not past due i - 1,352 - 1,352 NO &
1 - 180 days past due #HE1%E180H - 967 - 967 NO #&
181 - 365 days past due  HE8181%3650 2% 362 @ 355 NO &
Over 1 year past due BHIBR—F 28% 234 (66) 168 NO &
2,915 (73) 2,842
Contract assets BHEE - 1,051 - 1,051 NO &
At 30 November 2021 R-ZE_—%+—H=+H
Expected Gross carrying Loss Net carrying Credit-
loss rate amount allowance amount impaired
THHEEE IREERE EiERE BEREFE =ERE
% RM'000 RM000 RM’000
Vit - HEFT g S
Trade receivable EWE R
Not past due R = 6,545 == 6,545 No £
1 - 180 days past due #H1E180H = 284 — 284 No %
181 - 365 days past due  #1E8181%3650 2% 708 (15) 693 No &
Over 1 year past due MERR—F 43% 2,270 (984) 1,286 No £
9,807 (999) 8,808
Contract assets BREE = 287 = 287 No £
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B ER R M

Year ended 30 November 2022 HEZE—ZE - —F+—A=F+HILFE

28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets (continued)

At 30 November 2022, the Group recognised loss allowance
of approximately RM73,000 (2021: RM999,000) on the trade
receivables. The movement in the loss allowance for trade

receivables during the year is summarised below.

28. 2REAMEEREREE#E)

FERREE)
ESRUMEREHEE (&)

R=ZE=-_—F+—A=+H ~5BEHR
B 5 RWGIARERE BB AL F% 73,000
TT(ZFEZ=—F : F1999,0007T) - &I
EoRWREBE 2 BERESZHN T XM

2022 2021

—E-—fF —T-—F

RM’000 RM’000

B¥Fr ST T

At the beginning of the reporting period s A 999 999
Increase in allowance AL 0 (926) —
At the end of the reporting period AR 73 999

The Group does not hold any collateral over trade receivables
and contract assets at 30 November 2022 (2021: Nil).

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

AREBR T - —F+—F=1+HIER
ZHRNFIBRAENEERSB TMAEAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2022 HE—ZT - —F+—A=F+HILFE

28.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Other receivables

The Group considers that other receivables have low credit risk
based on the borrowers’ strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term and low risk of default.
Impairment on other receivables is measured on 12-month ECL

and reflects the short maturities of the exposures.

In estimating the ECL, the Group has taken into account the
historical actual credit loss experience over the past three
years and the financial position of the counterparties, adjusted
for forward-looking factors that are specific to the debtors
and general economic conditions of the industry in which the
counterparties operate, in estimating the probability of default
of these financial assets, as well as the loss upon default in
each case. The management of the Group considers the ECL of
these financial assets to be insignificant after taking into account

the financial position and credit quality of the counterparties.

There was no change in the estimation techniques or significant
assumptions made during the year.

Restricted bank balances and bank balances and cash

The management considers the credit risk in respect of restricted
bank balances and bank balances and cash is minimal because
the counter-parties are authorised financial institutions with high
credit ratings.

28. SRIEREEEERBE#)

FERRE)
At EK 7 E

AEERR  HREEARGEHMANET
BNRERERE BN REENR
% HMERFAZEERRRIE - it
FEW IR 2 BB R12A 2 RRAEEE
BitE - ARBRERNERAREE -

RETEHEEERR @ ASEET kY
FHBE=FZRABEREEBRERN
MBAR - RAFTZEFEREEZEOMR
ERNEBEAT 2 EHNEER - RIEBEET
AREFHEERETE 2 - REBERE
ZEHEAMBERRTARE - KEEHTF
TRBBRAREEERER  AREEE
BRA  UWEeREECBRBEESRL
AERX -

WA 2 5 I AR R 2 B AR
B o

ZREBITERARBRTERREE

EEERR - XBRHRITHERIARIRITAE
#EAEZEERREN - RRARXSY
FHREBREENR AT REE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR MR

Year ended 30 November 2022 HEZE—ZE - —F+—A=F+HILFE

28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 28. SRIEREEEERBE#)

AND POLICIES (continued)

REBETER

AEBZERRRBESHEERERN
MERFE - AREYEABRRER
Hi#ie - RBEEHRAEESREAE
ZARBBANIIRN(RIBEAEE RS
B2 RFEBH)MAMT -

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility. The Group has no specific
policy for managing its liquidity. The undiscounted contractual
maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end of
the reporting period, based on the earliest date on which the

Group is required to settle, is summarised as below:

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

Total
Total  contractual Ondemand  Over1year Over 2 years
carrying undiscounted  or less than but within but within
amount cash flow 1 year 2 years 5years Over 5 years
KEREHR RERHD BR1F B2
AREE EREAE ME BE2ER BESFR &85 F
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM000 RIM000 RIM000
BRI BRI BRI -1 o -1 -1
At 30 November 2022 R=2-Z%+-A=tA
Trade and other payables B5 R EMERFE 2,874 2,874 2,874 - - -
Interest-bearing borrowings SRR ()
(Note) 829 829 829 - - -
Lease liabilities HEAR 975 1,132 250 205 468 209
4,678 4,835 3,953 205 468 209
At 30 November 2021 R=E=—%+-A=1+A
Trade and other payables B o REMERNTUE 11,631 11,631 11,631 — — —
Interest-bearing borrowings GTEEE (M)
(Note) 853 853 853 — — —
Lease liabilities HEAR 1,211 1,416 291 249 554 322
13,695 13,900 12,775 249 554 322




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2022 HEZ —ZE - —F+—A=F+HILFE

28.

29.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Note: The amounts repayable under bank loan agreement that include
a clause that gives the bank an unconditional right to call the
borrowings at any time are classified under the category of “On
demand or less than 1 year”. However, the management of the
Group does not expect that the bank would exercise such right to
demand the repayment and thus, the borrowings, which included
the related interest, would be repaid according to the below

schedule as set out in the bank loan agreement as follow:

28.

TREREEBERBE )

RBEERRE)

Het - RBROTBEFHREEEZIHBEIER
MEERFDTF R - ZHARERE

TIRITE R RETI B B B B2 &
Koo A AKREERERBARTHS
STEMERENERER - At - %E
E(BERBENE)BRERTERBH
PR TS5 MR ER

Total
contractual Over 1 year Over 2 years
Total carrying undiscounted Less than but within but within
amount cash flow 1 year 2 years 5years Over 5 years
RERENE BBIE BiBof
ARAE SHEHE SME BE2FR BHE5ER 1Bi85 F
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
BETT BETT BETT BETR BRI EETT
At 30 November 2022 RZBZZF+-A=+H
Interest-bearing borrowings HEEE 829 1,139 75 75 224 765
At 30 November 2021 RZZE=—%+-A=+AH
Interest-bearing borrowings GBS 853 1,086 7 78 233 704
Fair value ATE
All financial assets and financial liabilities are carried at amounts FrBEcREERCRBENIREER T
not materially different from their fair values at 30 November ZZERZE—F+—RA=THZA¥F
2022 and 2021. BRI Rz &I -
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 29. EXRER

The objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to provide returns for equity owners. The Group manages
its capital structure and makes adjustments, including payment
of dividends to equity owners, call for additional capital from
equity owners or sale of assets to reduce debts. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the
years ended 30 November 2022 and 2021.

AEBEERNEE 2 HERRERNEERFE
BB 2N  WRERSES AREE
oo AEBEBEIRHEARNRERIELHFAE
PEREAESEEAZINRE  RERES
ANERBIINERSHEEE - WRDE
o RNBEZE-—FER-_T-—F+—
A=+RHILFE - BEBE BRAREF
A AEEE) o
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBEHE

The following is a summary of the published results and assets and T AAREEREI A EMBEE 2B HIEE

liabilities of the Group for the last five financial year, as extracted BERNEBEANBEZBE RGO EEFR
from the audited consolidated financial statements in the respective BT AT EERER o

7

annual report.

Results of the Group for the year ended 30 November
AEEBZE+ - BA=1THLFEZEE

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

e T F —T_TF —_T-hF —T-N\F

RM’000 RM’000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

BFr | BETr BTt FBETT BETFT

Revenue g 12,467 17177 10,011 19,428 47,581
(Loss) Profit before taxation BREiAT (EE) &R (6,592) (6,219)  (11,192) 1,383 10,266
Income tax expenses Fr8BiR (144) (48) (71) (2,414)
(Loss) Profit for the year FE (Fi8) &5 (6,736) (6,267)  (11,192) 1,312 7,852
Other comprehensive His2mkzE ()

income (expenses) 242 (22) 36 (354) —
(Loss) Profit and total FE (B8 BAkE

comprehensive (expenses) | (%) limiesE

income for the year (6,494) (6,289) (11,156) 958 7,852

Assets and liabilities of the Group as at 30 November
AEERT—A=tHZEEREE

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
Sl T —F —T-FF ZT-NEF ZT-N\F

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’'000

BT | BEFr BEFr FEFr SB¥T

Non-current assets ERBEE 4,218 5,885 6,000 6,693 1,707
Current assets REEE 11,449 25,432 26,875 36,028 44,032
Total assets WEE 15,667 31,317 32,875 42,721 45,739
Current liabilities REBEE 5,582 14,527 10,046 8,766 13,352
Non-current liabilities FRBEME 794 1,005 755 725 115
Net assets EERE 9,291 15,785 22,074 33,230 32,272
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